Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - Agenda

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019 4:00 p.m.
President’s Board Room
Conference Call-In Phone #1-800-442-5794, passcode 463796

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER Beverly Seay

Chair, Audit and Compliance Committee
II. ROLL CALL Margaret Melli

Executive Administrative Assistant of

University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk
I11. MEETING MINUTES

e Approval of the January 24, 2019, Audit Chair Seay

and Compliance Committee meeting minutes

IV. NEW BUSINESS Chair Seay

e Compliance Accountability (INFO-1) Christina L. Serra
Director of Compliance and Ethics
and Interim Chief Compliance, Ethics,

Risk Officer
e IntegrityLine and Whistle-blower Program Christina L. Serra
(INFO-2) Robert Taft
Chief Audit Executive
e University Audit Report (INFO-3) Robert Taft
e Crowe LLP Proposal (INFO-4) Robert Taft
e Florida Auditor General Financial Audit Robert Taft

Report (INFO-5)

V. CLOSING COMMENTS Chair Seay
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UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting
January 24, 2019
UCF Rosen College of Hospitality Management

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

Trustee Beverly Seay, chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee, called the meeting to
order at 9:15 a.m. Committee members Kenneth Bradley and Bill Yeargin were present.
Committee member Dave Walsh attended by teleconference call. Chairman Marcos
Marchena, Trustees Joshua Bolona, Joseph Conte, Robert Garvy, John Lord, and Alex
Martins were present.

MINUTES APPROVAL

The minutes from the November 30, 2018, meeting were approved unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

Acceptance of the Board of Governors’ Performance-based Funding Data Integrity
Certification Audit Report (AUDC-1)

Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive, provided an outline of the Board of Governors’
Performance-based Funding Data Integrity Certification Audit Report and the process
involved for acceptance. The report was accepted unanimously by the Committee.

Approval of the Performance-based Data Integrity Certification Form (AUDC-2)
Taft gave an update on the Performance-based Data Integrity Certification Form Audit Plan.
The plan was approved unanimously by the Committee.

Chair Seay adjourned the Audit and Compliance Committee meeting at 9:25 a.m.
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Reviewed by:

Beverly Seay
Chair, Audit and Compliance Committee Date

Respectfully submitted:

Grant J. Heston Date
Associate Corporate Secretary
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ITEM: INFO-1

UCF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019

Title: Compliance Accountability

Background:

The UCF Audit and Compliance Committee Charter (https://compliance.ucf.edu/files/2017/03/Approved-
1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf) requires that the committee meet at
least three times as year. A standard agenda item for these meetings include a status update from University
Compliance, Ethics, and Risk on the office’s activities. In light of recent events and discussions regarding
responsibilities for compliance at the university, and, at the request of Committee Chair Seay, the office is
providing this overview of the UCF Compliance and Ethics Program Plan, specifically the section that
relates to roles and responsibilities for compliance accountability in place of the usual status update.

Issues to be Considered:

The material in this presentation is a summary of one section contained in the UCF Compliance and Ethics
Program Plan. The UCF Compliance and Ethics Program Plan was previously approved by the Audit and
Compliance Committee on October 11, 2017, by the full Board of Trustees on October 26, 2017, and was
submitted to the Board of Governors as required by BOG Regulation 4.003. There are no issues for the
committee to consider, rather this presentation serves as a reminder and educational tool.

Alternatives to Decision:
No decision is required.

Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding:

As no decision is required, there is no anticipated fiscal impact. Should a discussion regarding the structure
of the compliance and ethics program lead to a proposed change to move from a decentralized to a more
centralized model, there will be a fiscal impact. However, the committee is not being asked to evaluate the
structure at this time.

Recommended Action:

There is no recommended committee action. This presentation serves as a reminder of the existing
compliance and ethics program, specifically, the roles and responsibilities for compliance and ethics at the
university contained in the UCF Compliance and Ethics Program Plan previously approved by the
committee and full board.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action:
UCF Audit and Compliance Committee Charter (https://compliance.ucf.edu/files/2017/03/Approved-
1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf).

Committee Chair or Chairman of the Board approval:
Committee Chair Beverly Seay approved the agenda and all supporting documentation.


https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcompliance.ucf.edu%2Ffiles%2F2017%2F03%2FApproved-1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CMargaret.Melli%40ucf.edu%7Cb9396829ce06446e7cf208d6b1b8629c%7Cbb932f15ef3842ba91fcf3c59d5dd1f1%7C0%7C0%7C636891802826691880&sdata=EhqstYjZzh%2Fp74a19TXoHYadBlaEEu4z0UW7qflJVo0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcompliance.ucf.edu%2Ffiles%2F2017%2F03%2FApproved-1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CMargaret.Melli%40ucf.edu%7Cb9396829ce06446e7cf208d6b1b8629c%7Cbb932f15ef3842ba91fcf3c59d5dd1f1%7C0%7C0%7C636891802826691880&sdata=EhqstYjZzh%2Fp74a19TXoHYadBlaEEu4z0UW7qflJVo0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcompliance.ucf.edu%2Ffiles%2F2017%2F03%2FApproved-1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CMargaret.Melli%40ucf.edu%7Cb9396829ce06446e7cf208d6b1b8629c%7Cbb932f15ef3842ba91fcf3c59d5dd1f1%7C0%7C0%7C636891802826691880&sdata=EhqstYjZzh%2Fp74a19TXoHYadBlaEEu4z0UW7qflJVo0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcompliance.ucf.edu%2Ffiles%2F2017%2F03%2FApproved-1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CMargaret.Melli%40ucf.edu%7Cb9396829ce06446e7cf208d6b1b8629c%7Cbb932f15ef3842ba91fcf3c59d5dd1f1%7C0%7C0%7C636891802826691880&sdata=EhqstYjZzh%2Fp74a19TXoHYadBlaEEu4z0UW7qflJVo0%3D&reserved=0
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Submitted by:
Christina L. Serra, Director of Compliance and Ethics and interim Chief Compliance, Ethics, and Risk
Officer

Supporting Documentation:
Attachment A: Compliance Accountability

Facilitators/Presenters:
Christina L. Serra, Director of Compliance and Ethics and interim Chief Compliance, Ethics, and Risk
Officer
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Compliance and Ethics
Program Plan

v Documents UCF'’s
Compliance and Ethics
Program

v" Communicates roles and
responsibilities

v Board of Governors
Regulation 4.003 requires
approval by UCF Board of
Trustees and copy
submitted to the Board of
Governors

v Plan approved by:

e Audit and
Compliance
Committee on
October 11, 2017

 Board of Trustees on
October 26, 2017

v Submitted to the Board of
Governors
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UCF’'s Compliance
and Ethics
Program

Developed consistent with:

» Code of Ethics for Public
Officers and Employees
contained in Part lll, Chapter
112, Florida Statutes

» Federal Sentencing Guidelines
Manual, Chapter 8, Part B,
Section 2.1

As required by Florida Board of
Governors Regulation 4.003 State
University System Compliance and
Ethics Programs

UCF
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UCF’'s Compliance and
Ethics Program

Based on Elements of an Effective Program:

» Element | - Oversight of Compliance and Ethics and
Related Activities

 Element Il — Standards of Conduct, Policies and
Procedures

* Element Ill — Effective Training and Education
* Element IV — Effective Lines of Communication

* Element V — Routine Monitoring, Auditing, and
Identification of Risks

* Element VI — Respond Promptly to Detected Problems and
Undertake Corrective Action

* Element VIl — Enforce and Promote Standards through
Appropriate Incentives and Disciplinary Guidelines

* Element VIII — Measure Compliance Program Effectiveness
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UCF Audit and Compliance Committee
UCF President

Vice Presidents and Senior Leadership

Oversight of
Com p|ian ce Chief Compliance and Ethics Officer

and Ethics
and Related
Activities

University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Office

Compliance and Ethics Advisory Committee
Compliance Partners

Faculty, Staff, and Students

UCF
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Appointed by the UCF Board of Trustees

Assists the board in discharging its oversight
responsibilities

Specifically oversees the following for UCF and its
direct support organizations:
 internal control structure

 independence and performance of internal
and external audits and corrective actions
plans

* integrity of information technology
infrastructure and data governance

 independence and effectiveness of the
compliance and ethics program

» compliance with applicable laws and
regulations

» standards for ethical conduct
 risk mitigation
 internal investigation processes

The full charge and responsibilities of the committee is
communicated in the committee’s charter

UCF

11
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Must be knowledgeable about the Program and
shall exercise oversight with respect to its
implementation and effectiveness

In coordination with the Board of Trustees,
designates a senior-level administrator as the chief
compliance and ethics officer

Responsible for ensuring that:

» the chief compliance and ethics officer has
the independence and obijectivity to
perform the responsibilities of the position

» the chief compliance and ethics officer has
the adequate resources and appropriate
authority

e any imposed restriction or barrier that may
impede the function of the chief compliance
and ethics officer is removed

UCF

12
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Responsible for fostering a culture of ethical
conduct and compliance at UCF

Responsible for performing their roles in
compliance with all applicable federal and
state laws and regulations, as well as the
policies and procedures of the university

Responsible for ensuring that:

« any compliance programs under their
area of supervision have adequate
resources and are appropriately
positioned to be effective

 the function of the program is not
impeded

e any imposed barriers to an effective
Program are removed

13
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Assigned overall responsibility for the compliance and ethics
program

Oversees the University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk office

Responsible for developing the Program as required by this
Plan, specifically:

* maintaining a professional staff with sufficient size,
knowledge, skills, experience, and professional
certifications

 utilizing third-party resources as appropriate to
supplement the department’s efforts

» performing assessments of the program and making
appropriate changes and improvements

e routinely communicating to the Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee and president on
the effectiveness of the compliance and ethics
program

» developing and updating this Plan

Reports functionally to the Audit and Compliance Committee of
the Board of Trustees and administratively to the president

Full responsibilities detailed in the University Compliance,
Ethics, and Risk Charter

14
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Led by the chief compliance and ethics
officer

Charged with implementing and sustaining
the Program including:

e ongoing development of effective
policies and procedures

e education and training

e monitoring

e communication

e risk assessments

» responding to reported issues

Partners with the responsible university
personnel to monitor compliance and ensure
appropriate corrective actions when
necessary

15
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Advises the chief compliance and ethics officer on the
development of a comprehensive compliance and
ethics program and the mitigation of compliance and
ethical risks at UCF

Comprised of subject matter experts who are
responsible for compliance in their respective areas,
as well as representatives from

* Faculty Senate

» Staff Council

» Office of the Provost

» Office of the General Counsel

* University Audit
Committee purpose is to ensure consistent
communication and development of compliance and
ethics programs across the university and to ensure

that the elements of the Plan are implemented at all
levels of the institution

Members charged with promoting a culture of ethics,
accountability, and compliance at UCF

UCF

16
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Play an important role in ensuring the Program is
effectively implemented and that risks are mitigated

Required to report incidents of noncompliance or
unethical conduct, external requests related to
compliance and ethics activities, or any imposed
restriction or barrier to the effectiveness of their
function or the Program to the chief compliance and
ethics officer

Annually report the effectiveness of compliance and
ethics initiatives within their area of responsibility to
the University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk office

Dotted line responsibility to the chief compliance and
ethics officer

Accountability Matrix identifies the compliance and
ethics requirements, the individuals responsible for
those areas, and the vice president accountable for
compliance and ethical conduct and ensuring that
those areas are appropriately staffed and supported

UCF

17
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix

University Of Central Florida
Compliance and Ethics Accountabilify Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix

University Of Central Florida
Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix
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Compliance and Ethics Accountability Matrix

University Of Central Florida
Compliance and Ethics Accountabilify Matrix
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The responsibility for compliance with
laws, regulations, policies, procedures,
and standards of conduct rests with
every member of the UCF community

This expectation is communicated to
employees through the UCF Employee
Code of Conduct and to students
through The Golden Rule

UCF
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University
Compliance,
Ethics, and Risk —
Annual Reporting

» Began publishing an
annual report in 2017

 Included program building
activities and oversight of
the office

» Incorporated section on
compliance and ethics
activities of all Compliance
Partners
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2018 Annual Report

@ University Compliance,
il Ethics, and Risk Office
UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
Annual Report 2018
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Comprehensive
Compliance,
Ethics, and

Risk Report

The following is a summary of UCF’s comprehensive compliance, ethics,
and risk program accomplishments, to include compliance partner
reports from July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018.
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. mms and oversight, vendor relations, sponsorships. university parinerships with

2%, retadl tenant relathons, and human resources. Thede discussions included the
Aeersity pariners anddor DE0: Administration and Finance Divislon, Business Services,
iTranspodtation Services, and the UCF Convocalion Corporation

= b vy e ] Pla iy e o vl e
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the Continuity of Operations Space Planning and Allecations Commitiee,

SR Y d momhly stafl mestings to communicate compliance and ethics topics rekevant 1a the
AT PR DT Amank
"
4 T iy pmrecil
gt Wt Yor) Progr e, e vt we
Aol e ko off wene registercd membiers andfor participated in the follewing non-unkeersity compliance
Ay Wl ¥ o
[op—— dated organizations: American Blological Safety Association, Ervironmeental Managemsent
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Emvironmental Management Assoclation annual conference, Florida Sate Linkversity System
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Participated in the follewing campus cutreach events 1o promote awarensess of EMS compliance
programs: Faculty Center for Teaching and Leaming new faculty arentation, faculty mestings,

-y Basibi
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Chaired the Youth Protection Program committos changed witf
Youth Peotection Program

Participatied in Ebwaekly stall e tingn with the UCF Aghletk
s Cool to Know the Rules” campaign
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vy W b e i e Do
st |l wir, | e b by o 07
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adership training for the Leadership Development Program in Human
r UCF Advancement Leadership and UCF Human Resources Leadership

E d t. d T " " 4 delivered in-person customized Gifts and Honoraria training for faculty
u C a I O n an ral n I n g e College of Medicine in September and October 2017,
iing events for new faculty during orientation in August 2017 and for all

+at the employee benefits fair in October 2017, offering materials and guidance
s of interest and commitment, the UCF IntegrityLine, and the itegrityStar

Ed ucatl ng th e U C F er. Distributed UCER pamphlets to all new faculty and employees during their
e orlentations.
community about compliance
res po ns | b | | |t| es : e g u | ato ry ployees beginning November 2017. Announced and promoted the new training in the
. . Atober 2017 edition of the integrtyStar, as well as added the online training module to
O b I | g a‘“ O n S : an d th e e UCER website. Total number of employees trained: B&5.
u n Ive rS Ity’S CO m p | I an Ce an d Cusmmi:lced‘h{nnw t.h& Cnds:r" mini courses on the fn.llawlng topics: E_ommunicatic:n? with

the Public and Media, Conflicts of Interest, Fraud, Gifts and Honoraria, Harassment in the

1 Workplace, Reporting Violations, Sexual Harassment, and University Resources and posted
ethics program. th course o he UCER webse

fed and launched the Employee Code of Conduct training in October 2017 to
Aisting employees, Worked with HR to implement mandatory training for all new

Promated the “Know the Code® mini course Gifts and Honoraria in the March 2018 edition
of the IntegrityStar, and *Maintaining a Safe and Secure Workplace® in the June 2018
edition.

Promoted the office’s web courses titled Potential Conflicts - Florida Code of Ethics for
Public Officers and Employees, and Gifts and Honoraria (118 employees trained) in the July
2017 and the March 2018 edition of the fntearty Star. Distributed an all emplovees email in
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Government Reporting and  Regulatory  Activities.
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business ) ) )
" {Hon-unit Faculty and Adeministrative and Professional Staff Members; UCF-
ity Closures; UCF-3.040 Benefits and Howrs of Work,

T ' inistration reviewed and enhanced the telecommuting manual and
. A
)
= w3 vesmerandum of understanding paid parerital lesve 1o educate leadership
enoe practice, Additionally. in collaboration with SDES and Parking Services, HR
nzed bo review and support UCF's Expecting Mother parking

veloped and published the fellowing new policies: LOF Policy 4-016 Ermail Provisioning,
a-provisioning, and Use, and LCF Policy 4-017 Enterpeise Directory Govermnance.

Enhanced the Vendor Risk Management {VRM) program procedures and processes.

In eollaboration with campus covered entilies, drafied HIPAA security policies (g,
Authentication/Authorization, PHI Access Control Password Controls, Encryptions

;¥ Review and Development. Ensuring
Decryphion, atc) Standsnds Development (htpsinfoses ucl edw policiesandstandando).

adiures efbect UCFS commitment to ethecal
Apliance with applicaide Lws and regulaticns

Sorvad 36 char of the University Poliins. snd Pasadens Developed and updated 26 standand operating procedurnes to standardize processes and

coairution of the < ommithos and managoment of fhe onk Improve consistency and efficiency of operations.
LT

Brvraed poldcun sl peodaduse proe 0 wlmauen 4

of Trustee approval to update regulations UCF-3.001, UCF-3.0134, and
sure consistency between the Nondiscrimination Policy and Regulations,
porate the office name change from the Equal Employment Opportunity
a Action Programs Office to the Office of Institutional Equity.

P O I I Cy R eVI eW a n d 1 the development of a Facilities & Safety Workplace Language Policy, assisted
cations to Housing and Residence Life's Emotional Support Animal Policy and
Development

ms, assisted with UCF's Police Department’s Light Duty Policy that is currently
pment, and assisted with the development of an employee threat assessment

d the Pregnancy and Parental Status Policy committee, which began development
niversity-wide policy.

Ensuring policies and
procedures reflect UCF's
commitment to ethical viewed regulation UCF-5,006: Student Rights and Responsibilities.
conduct and Compliance with Jpdated parental notification procedure.

applicable laws and Updated program verification form for UCF Policy 4-401.1
regulations.

Revised the UCF procurement manual, section 8.0.1.f to correlate with changes to Board of
Governors' Procurement Regulation 18.001.

Initiated a procedure to retain all emails pertinent to ITBs and ITNs in a PDF format on

a server. This will ensure the emails are archived, which in turn will ensure dialog/
conversations will be available for any legal need.
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Athletics Compliance. Providing cversic ment of

the athdetics comphance program
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Research Compliance

Clery, VAWA, and Title IX Compliance

Research Compliance, Supporting the unhertitys research
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Compliance and Ethics
Organizational Structure

Centralized Oversight with Decentralized
Implementation

Five-Year Review under BOG
Regulation 4.003
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Questions?




Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

ITEM: INFO-2

UCF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019

Title: IntegrityLine and Whistleblower Program

Background: This agenda item was scheduled based on a motion made and approved at the January 24, 2019,
Board of Trustees meeting. This motion stated the Audit and Compliance Committee would review the
existing whistleblower determination and IntegrityLine programs and provide an update to the full board
along with any identified program recommendations.

Issues to be Considered:
Are these programs well publicized, are they being adequately monitored for performance, are they adequately
resourced, do they appear to be consistent with existing regulatory requirements?

Alternatives to Decision:
N/A

Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding:
Potential recommendation for additional staffing, training resources, or marketing efforts.

Recommended Action:
No specific recommendations.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action:

Florida Statute Sections 112.3187 - 112.31895; UCF Policy 2-010 Whistle-blower Determination and
Investigation; UCF Policy 2-700 Reporting Misconduct and Protection from Retaliation; UCF Audit and
Compliance Committee Charter.

Committee Chair or Chairman of the Board approval:
Committee Chair Beverly Seay approved the agenda and all supporting documentation.

Submitted by:

Christina L. Serra, Director of Compliance and Ethics and
Interim Chief Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Officer
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive

Supporting Documentation:
Attachment A: IntegrityLine and Whistleblower Program

Facilitators/Presenters:

Christina L. Serra, Director of Compliance and Ethics and
Interim Chief Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Officer
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Agenda

UCF IntegrityLine

Whistle-blower
Program
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF
IntegritylLine
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF 2-700 Policy statement

UCF is committed to a culture of integrity,

Reportl ng compliance, and accountability that
. encourages the highest standards of ethical
Misconduct 8 8

behavior.
an d Members of the university community are
: expected to conduct all university activities
PrOte ction and business in an honest, ethical, and lawful
manner.
fI’O m When members of the university community
| . . become aware of or have reason to suspect
REta |at 10N university activities and business are not

conducted according to these expectations,
UCF expects and encourages members of the
university community to make good faith
reports of suspected misconduct.

Policy

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

When to Report

Individuals, who in good faith believe
that a violation of law, regulation,
statute, UCF regulation, policy,
procedure, guideline, and/or standard
of conduct has occurred, or will occur,
are expected and encouraged to

UCF 2-700 Reporting promptly make a report of such
Misconduct and suspected misconduct.

Protection from
Retaliation Policy

Where to Report

Individuals may choose to report
suspected misconduct to their
supervisors, through central or
administrative offices, to the UCF
IntegrityLine, or directly to the
University Compliance, Ethics, and
Risk Office.

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF 2-700 Reporting
Misconduct and
Protection from

Retaliation Policy

43

Reporting Options
1. Supervisors

Reports of suspected
misconduct should normally be
raised first with an individual’'s
supervisor, or appropriate
college, department, or unit
administrator. Colleges and
departments usually are most
familiar with the issues and
personnel involved and,
therefore, may be best suited to
address a concern. Supervisors
receiving reports of potential
fraud should contact University
Audit for guidance and
Investigation.

UCF



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF 2-700 Reporting
Misconduct and
Protection from

Retaliation Policy

44

2. Central Offices

In some cases, an individual may feel uncomfortable
raising a report of misconduct at the college or
department or other similar administrative unit level due
to the nature of the subject matter or because of other
legitimate considerations that suggest an alternative
reporting process may be more appropriate. In such
instances, the individual may report suspected
misconduct through a central university office having
specialized expertise relating to the concern, such as:

» Office of the Provost (noncompliance with academic
regulations)

Human Resources (A&P, USPS, and OPS employee
relations issues)

Faculty Relations (faculty, including adjunct faculty
noncompliance)

University Audit (potential fraud and internal control
issues)

Athletics Compliance (NCAA violations)

Research Ethics and Compliance (falsification,
fabrication, plagiarism in research)

Office of Institutional Equity, Title IX coordinator
(discrimination, sexual harassment)

UCF



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF 2-700 Reporting
Misconduct and
Protection from

Retaliation Policy

45

3. University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Office

Individuals may also report suspected misconduct by
contacting the University Compliance, Ethics, and
Risk Office directly by calling the chief compliance
and ethics officer at 407-823-6263, by email to
complianceandethics@ucf.edu, by mail to 4365
Andromeda Loop N., MH 328, Orlando, Florida,
32816, or in person at Millican Hall #328.

4. UCF IntegrityLine

Individuals reluctant to report suspected misconduct
directly to their supervisors or through university
administrative or central offices are encouraged to
use the UCF IntegrityLine. The UCF IntegrityLine is
administered by a third-party vendor, NAVEX Global,
and offers individuals the option to report
anonymously.

The IntegrityLine is operated 24 hours a day, 365
days a year, and can be reached by using the
secure Web Reporting System located at:
www.ucfintegrityline.com, or by calling 1-855-877-
6049 toll-free. IntegrityLine reports will be processed
by EthicsPoint and sent to the University
Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Office to address
appropriately.

UCF



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF 2-700 Reporting Misconduct and
Protection from Retaliation Policy

Protection from Retaliation

Retaliation against anyone who, in good faith, reports misconduct, or who
participates in an investigation of misconduct, is strictly prohibited. The
university will take all reasonable and necessary actions to protect members of
the university community who have filed good faith reports of misconduct.
Disciplinary action resulting from self-reported misconduct is not considered to
be an act of retaliation.

Individuals who believe they have been subjected to acts of retaliation may file
a written or verbal complaint with the University Compliance and Ethics Officer
or through the UCF IntegrityLine. The University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk
Office is responsible for conducting an investigation and/or contacting the
appropriate university offices for review and disposition of the report per
applicable university policy or the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF IntegritylLine

University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Office

About the Office  Our Staff  Compliance Ethics Conflict of Interest  Resources Training  IntegrityLine  IntegrityStar

r Compliance, Ethics, and Risk News & Updates

wnd promotes a culture of

,and

?

M cCompliance &3 Ethics @ Enterprise Risk Management
Enhances co navior Fosters a cuiture of integnity, trust, and Oversees the identification assessment
it ance s, ect, which is consisient with the and management of risks and
reguiations. requirements. and UCF Creeq opponunities at coukd Impact universay
uneversity policies and procedures BULLUES.

DOMNG THE RIGHT THING MEANS ACTIRG WITH {WES-T'I' AR INTEGRITY i e T The INTEGRITYLINE allows you to report ethical concems without the fear of
AND SPEAKING P WHEN YOU KNOW OF OR SUSPECT UNETHICAL BEHAYIDR SPEAK “P G 5P S s
LINE )I'LAN UL .
24T, SECURE. ARDNTMOLUS, LISTEN AXD RESPOND
uctintegrityline.com
1-855-877-6049 owsu | UoF epuors Pk

et Compliance Mmcan Hall 326

ﬁ UCF Elhics Oriando, FL 52016.0001

Confiict of Interest o
Resources e
Training

 Speak Up posters placed in * Speak Up hyperlink placed ‘
all employee common areas on websites gﬁ)

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

QCTRRER 2014

IntegrityLine Provides Outlet for Reporting Ethical Misconduct

UCF employees can use a new independent,
ANONY IS System b repont suspecied or acteal
mizcondct or ethical concems. The university
sl up the Aysieem 5||l|>\.||,'r|\¢|}' as part of iis ooam-
mitmsent 1o a calture of inlegrity, conmplinnce
amid .hw_m,ulr.l'l".hl'r ikt ETICUUTARTS the |I||,!_Ek_'\£
dmndards of ethical behavior

When members of the mniversity commanily
bepome sware of of have rerson b suspact uni
versity activities and basiness ane not conducted
pecording bo these slansdards, LCF expects and
encoumpes members of the wniversily oom
mumnity to make good-faith repois of suspected
miscoaduct

LHCF worked with NAVEX Clobal b 5ot up
the UCF IntegrityLine. Enyployees can repon
either through the secwne Web system al wofin.
tegritylineom or by calling 1-855-R77-6k9

SPEAK UP

toli-free, The system iis nog a 911 or emergency
sErvice b repodt insmediate thical to life o
property

Thee Enternet portal does nil identily visitons
and deleies the Imiermet address so confiden-
tiality is maintained, Calls are pot recorded
or treoed. Integratyling information will be
peocessed amd sent bo the Compliance, Eihics,
and Kisk Office bo addness,

Einpoyees cailiirue b have the oplems of
reposting masconduct of ethacal comomms o
thesr supeivisos of olher approphiate office as
oulined in UCF's new palscy, Beporting Mis
conduct nnd Protection from Retliaton, which
1= avaklable an Witpdpoliches neledu

The wniversaly capects all reports of miscon-
dluct by b e i godad Faithe, and retaliacion
againsd anyone whis repons oF pariipaics (noan
investigstion is prahibaied

For any iecstions about the LICE Ingegrity-
Lime. reporing misconiduet oF ethical concerm,
coniact University Compliance, Eihics, and
Risk at 407-521.6263 or camplinneeandeth-
les@ el odu or use the UCE Integrityline at
wvw, el ndegrityline com

 Atrticle published in UCF employee newsletter

* New hire packets — IntegrityLine wallet cards and office brochure
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University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk Office
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A T B A e

IntegrityStar....

STISATFETAR - BFRRLIHIE | S0 Fo st 41

IntegrityStar..........

wrn

UCF Compliance snd [1hic o
1:u|lm-:m----"-l:-l'I = Rhanda
Compliance and Ethics Week A g e et s o L1 Lt i P i

AWarEness Rhonda
: L. Bishop
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Onliea UCT Web Cowria - Giftu ssd

Hisnararia Tralning Wsw Avsilsble |
In th? i e
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< Alipere Mew or
. @ Updated UCF
Policies and
g asan - 9 Recognition Poiprting Miscaabct ad Regulations
Frotesthon from Retatiation i
LR )

GFM'-I

IntegrityStar Newsletter

Inaugural edition, April 2016 — IntegrityLine Investigations Article

In Qur Next
Edition

July 2016 — Reporting Misconduct Policy Article S

Reporting Suspected Violations

D youa kreowe ] s o employes of LICF, your hovee ain obbgalion 1o repor any known

or suspechod violations of lows and UCF policies? University Compliance. Ethics, and
Rigk provides you with many Svenies io fepon o Stuabon of ask queshons about &
i

situation, We encowrage you o disowss tho situation with your manager, bul if you do

ol cominmabin doirg Mis Ben you may repoit anomymoushy o
wiww clinlegriiviing oo of call 1-855-877-6049
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UCF Employee
Code of
Conduct

IE'IF-

E'rﬁlpiiﬁiéé'(':ﬁde of Conduct

+*

Launched October 2017

Speak Up, Reporting
Options, UCF
IntegrityLine, Protection

from Retaliation
&

UCF



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

ETHICAL DECISION-MAKING If unsure, a

Fallowing our LUCF Ethical Standards, ask yoursell -

will the decision | make darmonstrate Is It legal?
1. Honesty and Integrity

Armn | being fair and honest, svolding actual or

perceived conflicts of interests or commitments?
am | being transparent?

I I I I I O e e 2. Respect
Am | being respectful to the ideas of others

embracing and valuing diversity and ensuring
that | amn not taking advantage of others?

Yas
Do it
i UGE
Fusndardy,
walis,
O e O 3. Responsibllity and Accountabliity regulation,
C Am | certain that this action is legal and athically !bﬂﬂ"luﬂ

sound? our Code?

4. Stewardship
Arm | using the university's resources to carry out
my responsibilities to the university, or will this Yas

use provide mea some personal benefit?

For mare guidance, refer to the Framework for

Ep bl

&l Dacis aking ol | fomt
Seop. Dan't do “"T'm*;:. Saek help frat

If vou sre ctill uncertain of the raght thing to da in L. Thi action w=plaining ety il 1

you are still uncertain of the right thing ta doin a e bt lﬂiﬂuw{; it don
given situation and need more assistance. consult [ —— Mwa“ usianca
with your supervisor compliance partner of the my famiy?
related compliance ares, University Compliance
Ethics, and Risk, or submit an inguiry through the

;
H i
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UCF IntegrityLine Reports

2014-2018

UCF IntegrityLine Reports

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UCF IntegritylLine

National Compliance and Ethics Week

University Compliance,

ucr | Ethics,and Risk Office ks dhtion Ase

2018 National Compliance and Ethics Week

{Click the image balow to Booess the raining modula)

BE Know the Code-UCF
'QK now-Code Reporting Violations

¥ J
Know the Code ' | vy
Reporting Violations If_ l
o b
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Compliance and Ethics Culture Survey
2016 - 2018

0 what extent do you agree or disagree with the 2016 2018 Trend 2016 2018
tatement: Count % Agree Count % Agree | (2018-2016) How familiar are you with._. i P Jeng
| feel comfortabl ing incid f Count % Familiar Count * (2018 - 2016)
eel com. ortable reporting II:ICI lents or concerns 0O 1,457 69% 1,191 71% 29 Familiar
noncompliance to my supervisors.
| feel that | would be protected from retaliation if | Uiniversity Compliance, Ethics and Risk office 1003 AT% 1.162 69% 22%
report a suspected compliance violation to my 1,341 64% 1,106 66% 3% R
supervisor. UCF Creed LGTE BO% 1410 = B4% 5%
I feel that | would be protected from retaliation if | . . . . . B
report a suspected compliance violation to a central 1,332 63% 1,103 66% 3% IUCF's policy for reporting Misconduct and Protection from 1578 1% 1940 250 14%
. Retaliation d inkic TS :
office (e.g. Human Resources, OIE, Procurement, etc.) )
| feel that | would be protected from retaliation if | UCF ine for anc y c and Q45 A5% L1117 | 61% 27%
report a suspected compliance violation through UCF 1,301 62% 1,128 | 67% 6% [ethical concerns
IntegrityLine. UCF Employee duct N Jicabi 1450 = 86%
| believe that most UCF employees know the laws, mployee Code of Condu ot applicable A5
regulations, and policies that they are required to Not applicable 1,038 62% - Familiar inchides reaponses of “Very Famiiar Familar or Somewhat Familiar
follow.
% Agree includes responses of "Strongly Agree", "Agree" or "Somewhat Agree"

e 71% employees reported * 67% employees reported familiar with
comfortable speaking up to the UCF IntegrityLine (up 22%)
supervisors (up 2%) e 75% familiar with Policy on Reporting

* 66%-67% employees feel protected Misconduct and Protection from
from retaliation when speaking up Retaliation (up 14%)

(up 3%-6%)

&

UCF
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INTEGRITYSTAR - OCTDBER 2018 | SEE PREVIOUS EDITIONS

IntegrityStar......coo
y

2018 Compliance and Ethics
Culture Survey
Background

In 2016, University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk conducted a
compliance and ethics culture survey to evaluate the
compliance and ethics culture at UCF. The results of the
survey were extremely positive, with a few opportunities for
improvement, such as a relatively low employee familiarity
with University Compliance, Ethics, and Risk, the UCF
Integrityline, and UCF's palicy for reporting Misconduct and
Protection from Retaliation. To incresse employes
awareness and education about the office, the UCF
Integrityline, UCF policies and ions, and

A message from
Umversﬂy
Compllance.
Ethics,

and Risk

In August 2018, Christina Serra, Director
of Compliance and Ethics and Interim
Chief Compliance and Ethics Officer
presented to the Board of Trustaes
Audit and Compliance Committes the
pesitive rasults of aur sacand

and Ethics Culture Survey.

and ethics topics, the office implemented a number of
initistives such as the new UCF Employee Cade of Conduct,
thrae online web trainings titled Gifts and Honoraria, Potential
Conflicts, and the UCF Emplayes Code of Conduct, and the
compliance and ethics newsletter, the IntegrityStar. Annual
Compliance & Ethics Week awareness campaigns were held
each November and the office hosted tabling events for
faculty during orientation and for staff during the benafits
fair each year. All new employees also began receiving
information about the office, the UCF IntegrityLine, and the
UCF Employee Code of Conduct

READMORE ¢

Code of Conduct: The Code and
the Road

You're driving to @ wedding. You thought the directions to
the address were clear but suddenly nothing looks famifiar.
You drive in circles, turning the directions over and over in
your mind as you anxiously watch the hands of the clock.
Finally, in a moment of clarity, you remember the road map
in your glove box. Quickly, you re-orient yourself ta your
current location and arrive breathlessly just as the
ceremany begins.

READMORE ¢

When to Blow the Whistle

The whistle-blower term comes from the expression “blow
the whistle” and refars to a sports official wha calls a foul
during the game. When university wrongdoing occurs,
calling foul s soon as possible can save the university
millions in fines and legal faes and preserve a priceless
reputation,

Wknow=tode

.’

Know the Code
Reponmq\flulatluns

READ MORE +

In the
Spotlight

This edition of the IntegrityStar
highlights a relatively new but very
important policy, UCF i
blower Determinatio
Policy.

vestigation

READ MORE »

@ Recognition

See who is being recognized for
outstanding efforts in compliance

READ MORE »

E New or
Updated UCF

Policies and

Regulations

Read about the new or updated UCF
policies and regulations that wers
recently approved.

READ MORE

o FAQs

In each IntegrityStar edition, we
highlight some frequently asked
questions. In this ninth edition, we
provide questions and answers related
‘o the topic of reporting.

READ MORE »

In Our Next
Edition

Our tenth edition will be out in
the spring of 2013.

- New Business

Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

UCF
IntegrityStar

October 2018

Articles:

» C&E Culture Survey Results
» Code of Conduct

* Whistle-blower Policy
 When to Blow the Whistle
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Whistle-blower Program

University Audit is authorized by FL statute (Sections
112.3187 — 112.31895 aka Whistle-blower’s Act) and Board
Of Governors’ regulation (4.002 SUS Chief Audit Executives)
to perform this role for the university.

The BOG regulation designates the Chief Audit Executive to
act as the Inspector General for the Whistle-blower’s Act.

58
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

UHIVERSITY OF CERTRAL FLORIDA

Oifice of the President

SUBJECT: Effective Date: Policy Number:
Whistle-blower Determination and 6/8/2018 2-010
Investigation Policy
Supersedes: Page Of
1 &
Responsible Authority:
Chief Audit Executive

APPLICABILITY fACCOUNTABILITY

This policy applies to all members of the university community, including direct support
organizations [D50s). who are current or former university employvees or applicants for
employment, as well as current or former employees of a university contractor.

POLICY STATEMENT

The university is committed to identifying and protecting whistle-blowers in accordance
with the Whistle-blower's Act (Sections 112.3187-112.31895, Florida Statutes). It is the
intent of the Whistle-blower's Act to prevent agencies or independent contractors from
taking retaliatory or adverse personnel action against an employee who reports violations
of law which create a substantial and specific danger to the public’s health. safety. or
welfare. or relate to gross waste of public funds. gross mismanagement. malfeasance.

Univers |ty PO | |Cy 2-010 misfeasance. Medicaid fraud or abuse. or gross neglect of duty committed by an employee

. . X or agent of an agency or independent contractor.
(Whistle-blower Determination e _ _
All university and D50 employees are responsible for promptly referring any potential

an d | nvest|gat|o n ) was C reated whistle-blower complaints they receive from a known individual to University Audit for
. . determination of whistle-blower status. Although anomymous complaints do not qualify for
to su ppo rt com P liance with whistle-blower status, any anenymens complaints alleging fraudulent activity as outlined
in university policy 2-800.1. Fraud Prevention and Detection. should also be promptly
the statutes and BOG referred to Unbversity Audit for disposition.
reg u | at | ons. When a whistle-blower investigation is necessary. University Audit is responsible for

performing the investigation into the whistle-blower complaint and will refer other claims

Phone 407 5231823 » Fao: 407 B33, 2204 « Wit prasadent ! sdu
An Erqual Opponunity and ASmatve Action Instiution
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Whistle-blower determinations are
performed by University Audit regardless of
the source (sources extend beyond
IntegrityLine)

Key Point

#1

You cannot request or claim whistle-blower
status if you make an anonymous complaint.

You must identify yourself to University Audit
to be eligible for whistle-blower status.

You may accidently or inadvertently identify
yourself to University Audit via submitted
documentation. In this case, a whistle-blower
determination will be performed.

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

You cannot obtain whistle-blower
status if you have participated in
any illegal or inappropriate
activity that you reported or
alleged has occurred.

Key Point

# 2

61



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Whistle-blower status typically provides the
following protections:

Key Point

Affords the complainant permanent anonymity.
Complainant’s identity is exempted from public
record even after the investigation is closed.

# 3

Provides the complainant protection from
retaliatory acts and or adverse personnel
actions.

Allows the complainant to pursue administrative
remedies and or bring civil action.

Outlines/defines requirements for providing
relief to the complainant, where retaliation has
occurred.

&

UCF
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Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

The whistle-blower determination is made on
information provided by the complainant
prior to the start of the investigation not on
the results of the investigation.

Key Point

# 4

Once an investigation has been initiated,
whistle-blower status cannot typically be
provided.

63



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Whistle-blower status is rarely granted
_ based on the definitions within the
Key Point Florida statute.

#5

For example:

“Gross mismanagement” means a
continuous pattern of managerial
abuses, wrongful or arbitrary and
capricious actions, or fraudulent or
criminal conduct which may have a
substantial adverse economic impact.

UCF
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As required by statute, University Audit is required to
complete the whistle-blower determination within 20
_ calendar days of receipt of the complaint. The date of
Key Point “receipt” by University Audit varies based on the

# 6 source.

Regardless of the issues involved, complaints from
named individuals coming to other UCF departments
from known complainants need to be forwarded to
University Audit as quickly as possible.

Extensions can be granted by the Governor’s Office if
additional time is required to interview the
complainant and/or review evidence provided prior to
the start of any investigation.

A report on the investigation shall be submitted to the
Chief Inspector General (Governor’s Office) and the
complainant within 60 days. This time period may be
extended in writing by the Chief Inspector General for
good cause shown.

&

UCF
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The complainant is directly notified of
their whistle-blower status in writing by
Key Point University Audit. There is no appeals

H/ process.

If the same or other complaints are
submitted by a named individual to the
Governors Inspector General office
and/or the Board of Governors’
Inspector General, they are routinely
forwarded to University Audit for
additional whistle-blower
determination activities as appropriate.

UCF
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A whistle-blower related investigation does

not have to be performed by University

Key Point Audit and may be performed by individuals
that are not university employees.

# 8

However, per statute, University Audit is
responsible for overseeing the
investigation, ensuring standards are
followed, and coordinating all activities of
the whistle-blower investigation. This
includes distribution of investigation
findings to the complainant, and applicable
parties such as the Board of Governors,
Board of Trustees, and management.

UCF
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Even if whistle-blower status is not
granted to the complainant, an

Key Point investigation may still take place based
# 9 on the information provided. This
investigation can be performed by
internal or external parties.

If whistle-blower status is not provided,
the complainant(s) is still covered by
UCF anti-retaliation policy (2-700
Reporting Misconduct and Protection
from Retaliation).

UCF
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Per discussion with the Board of Governors’
Inspector General, we have been informed
that either a Board of Trustee member or
direct support organization (DSO) would
#10 not be eligible for whistle-blower status.
This issue is currently being researched.

Key Point

If a whistle-blower complaint is made
against a Board of Trustee member, the
investigation would potentially be escalated
to the Board of Governors’ Inspector
General to avoid potential conflict of
interest issues.

UCF
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There are circumstances where a whistle-blower could be
publicly identified including:

When “the disclosure of the individual’s identity is
necessary to prevent a substantial and specific danger to
# 11 the public’s health, safety, or welfare or to prevent the

imminent commission of a crime; or the disclosure is
unavoidable and absolutely necessary during the course
of the audit, evaluation, or investigation.”

Key Point

When the complainant provides written consent to
release their name or identity.

If there is a criminal prosecution associated with the
investigation.
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[ ]
‘ a I I b ra t e Language between various UCF policies for clarity and consistency

Additional Training
* Mandatory on-line training for all employees on the UCF IntegrityLine and whistle-blower program

| Xe ‘ ' l t e ¢ Increase awareness of whistle-blower program and policy to potential complainants

¢ Training to key departments on handling and escalating named complaints for whistle-blower
determination

Changes to Florida Statutes

I n C O r p O ra t e The volume of whistle-blower investigation activities into department staffing model

Le Ve ra g e Results from culture survey to evaluate further improvements to the program

ext Steps
-
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Questions?
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ITEM: INFO-3

UCF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019

Title: University Audit Report

Background:

The UCF Audit and Compliance Committee Charter (https://compliance.ucf.edu/files/2017/03/Approved-
1.13.17-UCF-BOT-Audit-and-Compliance-Committee-Charter.pdf) requires that the committee meet at
least three times as year. A standard agenda item for these meetings is to have University Audit to provide
a status update on their activities to the committee.

In addition, the Institute of Internal Auditors standard 1111 (Direct Interaction with the Board) states that
"The chief audit executive must communicate and interact directly with the board.”

Issues to be Considered:

While no formal approval or acceptance of this report is required, the committee is encouraged to use this
material to assist in providing a recommendation to the full UCF Board of Trustees on the potential use of
external audit services which has been discussed in prior board meetings. Also, any thoughts on areas of
interest for future committee training or projects for inclusion on the audit plan should be provided as well.

Alternatives to Decision:
No decision is required to accept or approve this report.

Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding:

If a decision is made to acquire external audit services, there will be the need for the committee or full board
to make decisions on the maximum budget for these services, the selection process for these services, the
appropriate source(s) of funding and cost centers, the frequency of these services, and how the results of
these services will be used.

Recommended Action:

University Audit would recommend the committee focus any suggestions to the full Board of Trustees on
a targeted use of external audit services to coordinate with current Florida Auditor General activities
along with supplementing any additional audit department staff that would work entirely on financial
statement control development and monitoring activities.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action:
UCF Audit and Compliance Committee Charter.

Committee Chair or Chairman of the Board approval:
Committee Chair Beverly Seay approved the agenda and all supporting documentation.
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Submitted by:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive

Supporting Documentation:
Attachment A: University Audit Report

Facilitators/Presenters:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive
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“University Audit
Presentation

UCF BOT Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019
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Agenda

Update on L3 lease per Trustee Walsh’s request

Ongoing and upcoming projects

Governance models and the potential role of external auditors
Staffing update
Technology update

AGB 2018 trustee index
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L3 Lease Update

Lease agreement was approved by the Board of Trustees on November 15, 2018.

Lease agreement has been signed with the UCF Real Estate Foundation for a five year period
initially starting on December 3, 2018.

Source of funds is distance learning fees (auxiliary funds not E&G funds).
No requirements that this funding source would ever need to be reverted to the state.

Lease payments will be made on a monthly basis and no prepayment of lease is required or
anticipated.

Building will be shared by UCF’s Digital Learning Center and UCF’s Continuing Education.

Expected move-in date will be December 2019 at the earliest with IT and facility renovation
currently taking place. :

Unrelated recommendation to have approval of BOT and committee meeting minutes be
performed by acting chair if the permanent chair is not present.
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Ongoing Projects

Capital projects-Roth Athletic Center
Downtown campus project status review
Disa.ster recolvery/business continuity review
Purchasing card transaction analysis/Power Bl
Admissions process and procedures

36 active investigations
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Planned Projects

Budget model review (audit was deferred on our plan per
management request)

Enhancement of automated PeopleSoft financial transaction and
reporting controls (including transfer of funds)

Memorandum of understanding (MOU) gap analysis
Additional capital projects as apprO\}ed by BOT
UCF Global/Shorelight management request

Use of e-signatures and automated forms




Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Staffing Update

Currently at 6 professional FTE

Senior Auditor search

Evehtual rethn of Kathy Mitchell to full time audit role

Use of part time staff and student interns for investigations
Evaluation of staffing model and needs

Search committee responsibilities
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Technology Update

MKI audit management software

IT strategic governance committee
Student succéss technology initiatives
PeopleSoft query inventory

Facilities technology recommendations
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Traditional Three Lines of Defense

Governing Body / Audit Comittee
i

15t Line of Defence $ 2nd |ine of Defence ? * 3rd Line of Defence

Management Icn;fartrr‘gll Internal Audit
Controls § Measures

1PNy |eussix3y
Joje|nbay
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Additional Lines of Defense

Stakeholder Lines of Defense

9. Regulators
8. Rating Agencies

3. Independant internal Assurance

2. Tactical Oversight Functions

-
-
-
-

x

A¥ ¥

—

-
-

1. Operationsd L e Maragement
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What is our role?

= "] believe the #1 priority for both risk functions and internal audit
should be to strengthen the motivation and capability of
management to assess, manage, and reliably report on uncertainty
linked to top value creation and preservation objectives.”

. “Prriority #2 forinternal audit and risk functions should be to report to
their boards an opinion on how well management is doing on that.”

Tim Leech

Managing Director-Risk Oversight Services,
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Florida Auditor General

The Constitution of the State of Florida provides for the Legislature to appoint an auditor who shall
audit the public records and perform related duties as prescribed by law or concurrent resolution.
Section 11.42, Florida Statutes, designates the constitutional auditor as the Auditor General and

Sections 11.42 through 11.47, Florida Statutes, set forth her general authority and duties.

As the state's independent external auditor, the Auditor General provides unbiased, timely, and relevant
information that the Legislature, Florida's citizens, public entity management, and other stakeholders

can use to promote government accountability and stewardship and improve government operations.

Over 300 employees organized into three divisions: the Information Technology Audits Division, the

Educational Entities and Local Government Audits Division, and the State Government Audits Division.

Supported by a general counsel and quality control group.
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Florida Auditor General--Duties

Conduct financial audits of the accounts and records of state
government, state universities, state colleges, and school districts.

Conduct operational and performance audits of public programs,
activities, and functions and information technology systems.

Federal Audits

Subject to peer review to verify they conform to Government
Auditing Standards and have high quality and professional staff.
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Comparison of Florida Auditor General to
((Big 4))

Auditor General

Completely independent from UCF

Perform their own-risk assessment for audit
scope determination

Conduct audits in accordance with auditin

standards generally accepted in the Unite

States of America and applicable standards

contained in Government Auditing Standards,

iSssued by the Comptroller General of the United
tates.

Provide written reports
No direct compensation from UCF
No RFP/ITN requirement

Cannot be removed by UCF

Big 4
Completely independent from UCF

Perform their own risk assessment for audit
scope determination

Conduct audits in accordance with auditin

standards generally accepted in the Unite

States of America and applicable standards

contained in Government Auditing Standards,

Esssued by the Comptroller General of the United
tates.

Provide written reports

Would require direct compensation from UCF
unless performing pro bono work

Would require RFP/ITN on periodic basis

Could be removed by UCF
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External versus Internal Auditor focus

External Auditors "~ Internal Auditors

* External auditors’ primary = Internal auditors will typically

responsibility is to examine the
financial records and issue an
opinion regarding the financial
statements of the organization.

Can perform other types of
services such as operational audits
(potential conflict of interest for
public accounting firms but not for
Auditor General)

Look for fraud and investigate as
appropriate

examine issues related to the
organization’s objectives,
business practices and related
risks

Can perform financial
records/processes work as part of
their role or can assist the external
auditors with their annual
financial statement audit.

Look for fraud and investigate as |
appropriate -
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Potentlal scope of external auditor
services

System implementation or
enhancement

Process design/redesign

Regulatory compliance
support

Consulting services
Investigations
Reports typically issued

independently with follow-up
performed by Internal Audit

Serve as full time IT,SOX,
construction, medical claims,
etc. internal audit resource for
the organization

Audit plan developed for them
by Internal Audit

Audit scope and activities
managed by Internal Audit

Reports would be issued
through Internal Audit office
where follow-up would be
coordinated

89

Would replicate the work
performed by the Auditor
General during their annual
Financial Audit

Would issue an opinion in
separate report or be
incorporated into annual
Auditor General report
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AGB 2018 Trustee Index Report

Areas of focus that Trustees across the nation are thinking about:

Public’s perception of higher education

Cost of higher education and impact of student loans

Free speech on campus

Role and cost of athletic programs

'l;itle IX/sexual assault

Budget, funding and pricing models (is the university built to last?)

Academic programs (reduction of non-performing programs and approval of
experimental programs)

Student retention, graduation rates, and post-graduation outcomes




Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

AGB 2018 Trustee Index Report

Key questions for Boards

2.

Could any of these issues be a fatal blow to your institution?

s the Board getting the right level of information to make decisions on
these initiatives?

Does the Board have enough time to analyze and discuss this information
to make sound decisions?

Does the current committee structure meet these needs and priorities?

Which projects related to these issues should be selected for funding (or
defunded) and why?

How can the Board serve as public advocates for higher education?
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ITEM: INFO-4

UCF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019

Title: Crowe LLP Proposal

Background:

The Florida Board of Governors is evaluating a proposal to have an external accounting firm perform an
Internal Management Accounting Control and Business Process Review for the entire State University
System. The attached document is Crowe’s proposal to provide this work.

Issues to be Considered:

Does this document impact any actions by the committee including any potential requests for external
auditor services being considered by the Audit and Compliance Committee for recommendation to the full
board? How does the committee anticipate leveraging any reports from this project as part of their overall
governance responsibilities?

Alternatives to Decision:
It appears that participation in the Board of Governors project will be mandatory.

Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding:
It is anticipated that each university will be asked to contribute to the cost of the review with each
university’s share to be determined. The total fees for service was quoted as $549,920.

Recommended Action:
The Audit and Compliance Committee should be prepared to participate in this project as requested by
Crowe and to include any reports from the project as an agenda item for a future committee meeting.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action:
Section 5 of the Audit and Compliance Committee charter.

Committee Chair or Chairman of the Board approval:
Committee Chair Beverly Seay approved the agenda and all supporting documentation.

Submitted by:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive

Supporting Documentation:
Attachment A: Crowe LLP Proposal

Facilitators/Presenters:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive
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Attachment A

/. Crowe

Proposal to Provide Internal Management
and Accounting Control and Business
Process Review

January 11, 2019

* Submitted to:

Rosey Murton, CPPO, CPPB

Chief Procurement Officer

State University System (SUS) of Florida Board of Governors
325 West Gaines Street, Suite 1614

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400

Submitted by:

Mark Maraccini, Partner {IL CPA)
Crowe LLP

401 East Jackson Street, Suite 2900
Tampa, Florida 33602-5197

Direct 630.990.4410

Tel 813.223.1316

Fax 813.229.5952

. mark.maraccini@crowe.com

Audit / Tax / Advisory / Risk / Performance
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Management and Accounting Controls State University System of Florida 1
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Management and Accounting Controls State University System of Florida 3

Risk Practice Overview

Crowe has provided risk solutions to over 600 organizations. Our Risk Services practice consists of
approximately 1,100 professionals internationally who provide governance and risk consulting services
to clients on a dedicated, full-time, year-round basis. Our industry coverage is broad and includes higher
education, not-for-profit, government, energy, manufacturing, construction, financial services,
healthcare, insurance, real estate, services and technology

T T

Risk Process and Intarmnal dudl:

USSR A S T O SR TN e ey [ SRR §

+ Enterprise Risk I';.I'Iianagament + Technology Risiq

= Corporate Governance = System Implementations

= Data Analytics «  Application Controls

+ Process Re-engineering + T Audit

+  Operations Performance * Information Security

+ Internal Audit * Information Privacy

+  S0X 404 = e-Discovery and Forensic Technology

+ Forensic Accounting and Auditing * Penetration Testing

«  Fraud, Ethics, and Anti-corruption « Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery
+  Paolicies and Procedures = S5AE 16/ 50C Reports

We believe in bringing practical “hands-on” experience to clients to provide value-added versus reliance
on younger, less experienced professionals. Our services focus on internal audit, IT audit, corporate
governance, third-party risk, enterprise risk management, security & privacy, FCPA and Sarbanes-Oxley
services. We help clients identify, source, assess, and audit their business risks.

Risk Consulting is also unique in that it is organized and functions as a Global practice as Crowe Risk
Consulting. This firm wide global structure allows us to provide consistent risk and audit services across
the country and globe, as well as be flexible and responsive to our client’s needs leveraging local
resources where possible. The Crowe team serving SUS will include professionals who have devoted
their careers to assisting clients with their needs. We assemble the most qualified team of industry
experts to work on each engagement, rather than simply limiting our team to only the local geography.
This approach will provide the SUS with a team of dedicated professionals who understand the issues
effecting higher education institutions, and thus will be able to focus on adding value and exceeding
your expectations immediately.

National Government Practice

Crowe has diverse, in-depth governmental experience that delivers insight and a clear understanding of
the challenges and solutions of public sector agencies. Crowe has been serving the needs of
gavernment organizations for more than 50 years. We work with many different types of government
organizations, including public transportation organizations, counties, municipalities, special service
districts, school districts, library districts, State agencies, and quasi-governmental entities.

Crowe's Government Services Team is comprised of 200 professionals, across many of our disciplines and
has worked with hundreds of public sector clients on thousands of engagements throughout the United
States to streamline systems and processes, oplimize revenue, and enable entities to meet reporting and
compliance requirements. Our approach is to bring the best experience to the client to serve the needs of
the client best. In today’s environment, specialized skills are needed and our team spends their time serving
clients in the public sector so that the clients receive the best expertise the firm has to offer.

Crowe solutions help address the financial and operational issues most critical to governments in
challenging economic times. Our diverse skills sets — business process, technology, finance,
accounting, fraud investigation, risk consulting, economic development, and performance - allows us to
deliver effective, cost-efficient services and provides your audit team with an in-depth understanding of
the unigue needs of a local government.

2015 Ciown LLP WORWCITRE O
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n

Huron Consulting Group Background

About Huron

Huron is a global consultancy that helps our clients drive growth, enhance performance and sustain
leadership in the markets they serve. We partner with them to develop slrategies and implement
solutions that enable the transformative change our clients need to own their future. Learn more at
www. huronconsultinggroup.com.

HURON HISTORY AND STRUCTURE
Huron was founded in 2002 with 200 employees and has over 3,000 full-time employees today
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Management and Accounting Controls State University System of Florida 6

Engagement Team Overview

Crowe has built its reputation on close senior level involvement and
maintaining strong client relationships. The ultimate success of our
client relationships is largely attributable to one key component = our
people. The proposed engagement team is well qualified to provide
quality, timely, and personalized services to you.

In assigning staff to engagements, we place high importance on I I 1
maintaining continuity of staff throughout the assessment. This is

important from a client service as well as an engagement efficiency

perspective.

Your proposed engagement team is well qualified to provide SUS with

quality, timely, and personalized service. Your engagement team includes members from Crowe and

Huron that will work seamlessly together to exceed your expectations. This strategic alignment brings
the SUS the industry experts in all facets of Higher Education along with public sector risk and control
experts to bring you a team

Engagement Team
We believe that a successful audit begins with creating the right engagement team. We propose to
structure our team as follows,

Mark Maraccini
Engagement Parner

© 2006 Crows LLP WO CICRET CEM
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Brief summaries outlining background, relevant experience, and industry credentials are provided below

for the executive and scope

ot

Ty TROnne|
e

Mark Maraccini
Engagement
Partner

Michael K
Phillips
Senior Director

Greg Bedell
Managing Director

Frank Kinney
Diractor

Mike Del Giudice

IT Risk and Cyber
Security SME

Bill Dykstra
Enterprise-Wide
Risk SME

© 2019 Crows LLP

Crowe

Huron

Huran

Huron

Crowe

Crowe

area leaders named for this engagement.

=i

EEDRS R R S S —
Qver the past 18 years, Mark has worked extensively with institulions of
higher education conducting risk and internal contral assessments. Mark
has also conducted numerous single and compliance audits, which
helped lay the foundation for understanding internal contrals and risks
surrounding financial reporting and federal compliance. Mr. Maraccini has
also recently presented to the National Granis Management Asscciation
on Risk Management and is slated to speak at the I1A International
Conference in 2019 on Enterprise Risk Managemant (ERM) in the public
seclor. Furthermere, Mark served on an expert panel for the 1IlA and AGA
related to risks surrcunding public sector internal audit divisions,

Michael is a Senior Director in Huron Consulting Group's Higher
Education practice. He has over thirty years of experience assisting
higher education and healthcare clients with establishing or improving
their business operations and infrastructures. His primary expertise is in
financial systems and technology. He also has extensive experisnce
working with clients in developing business sirategies, formulating
policies, improving processes and implementing solutions.

Greg has worked in the higher education, healthcare, government, and
not-for-profit environments for more than 23 years. He has specialized in
assisting universities and research institutions with strategic efficiency and
effectiveness assessments, cost reduction, organizational redesign,
operational improvement, process reengineering, systems selection,
research administration management and compliance, and the
implementation of effert reporting sclutions.

Frank is an experienced professional with a broad range of financial and
management knowledge and experience. His roles with colleges and
universities have included serving in several administrative staff positions,
as a management consultant, and as an independent auditor. As a project
leader in Huron's higher education practice, Frank's previous engagement
types include organizational studies, business process improvement,
administrative systems enhancement, research compliance, cost
containment, and interim roles such as controller and director of financial
reporting.

Mr. Del Giudice has 16 years of experience in the areas of information
security and data privacy. He is a security and privacy thought leader,
leading Crowe's IT Risk Management and Security Assessment solutions,
while providing security services to a broad range of Foriune 500
organizations across industries. Mr. Del Giudice evaluates and developes
solutions to improve |T capability, maturity, and governance. He is
expenenced in critical infrastructure environments, including insuranca,
financial institutions, energy, transportation, healthcare, and government
sectors. Mr. Del Giudice assists management in the execution of security
strategies, including the solution design, requirements gathering, and
vendor selection.

Mr. Dykstra specializes in enterprise risk management in Crowe’s Risk -
Public Sector Services. He is an experienced project manager and has an
internal audit background with 16 years of experience serving public and
not-for-profit organizations. During his career, Mr. Dykstra has provided
internal audit and risk consulting services to public and private
educational institutions, transportation agencies, and a various not-for-
profit service organizations and membership associations.
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Jonathan Dunn

Crowe
Team Lead
Tem Briggs Hiron
Manager
Resumes

A S
ound and Experience :

LpETIency = o

Mr. Dunn has several years of professional experience, specializing on
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-123. Mr.
Dunn performed testing on the OME Circular No. A-123, Management's
Responsibility for Enterprise Risk Management and Intemal Contral, for
federal agencies. Mr. Dunn has performed A-123 testing on business
pracesses including but not limited to; Financial Reporting, Grants
Management, Budget, and Cash Management.

Tom is a Manager in our Strategy and Operations (S&0) group focusing
on strategic planning, university operating budget assessment,
organizational restruciuring and capital planning. Tom has assisted
universities with organizational alignment studies, financial reporting and
management, internal contrel and process reviews, and financial analysis
connecled to strategic and capital investments. In addition, Tom is a
licensed CPA with prior experience in financial reporting compliance,
internal control assessment, and financial analysis.

We have provided resumes of the key individuals listed above in Appendix A of our proposal. The
resumes provide biographies that include relevant experience as well as years of experience, licenses
and certifications, professional affiliations and educational background.

© 2019 Crows LLP
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Proposed Project Schedule

Project Delivery Timeline

We have provided below a tentative schedule for performing key phases of the project and the time
expected to be at each University to complete each phase of the risk assessments. The schedule below
assumes an award date of March 1, 2019. Because of the inherent overlap between the Universities,
some of the tasks can be performed concurrently between schosls. Universities were grouped by
undergraduate enrollment to maximize the likely similarities in business processes and risk factors. It is
estimated that Task Number 2, 3, and 4 will take two weeks per University to complete and these tasks
cannet be performed simultaneously with ather Universities.

Group One: UCF, FIU, UF, FSU

Activities | Task

1. Planning 30472019 3/9/2019
2. Initial Assessment Iuz2me 50412019
3. Risk Assessment 12019 5/4/2019
4. Internal Control Review and Business Process Improvement Ininzo1s 5/4/2019
5. Presentations 5612019 5112018
6. Reporting 5612019 51172019

Group Two: USF, FAU, FGCU, UNF

Activities | Task

1. Planning 5132019 5/18/2019
2. Initial Assessment 52002019 32019
3. Risk Assessment 52042019 71372019
4. Internal Control Review and Business Process Improvement 52002019 TM3zMe
5. Presentations THM5/2019 Ti20/2019
6. Reporting THN&R2019 Tr20/2019

Group Three: UWF, FAMU, FPU, NCF

Activities |/ Task

1. Planning 2212019 712712019

2. Initial Assessment T128/2019 a21/2019
3. Risk Assessment TI28r2019 /21/2019
4. Internal Control Review and Business Process Improvement FI29/2019 8/21/2019
5. Presentations 232019 9/28/2018
6. Reporting 92312019 9/28/2018
& 018 Crowe LLP WA, ETGWE. oM
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Fee Summary

Our goal in setting fees is simple: to provide long-term, cost-effective pricing for our clients. We are
confident that we can work together to achieve an optimized plan for internal audit services.

Ve are committed to working with you to make sure the scope of our proposal is appropriate. While we
experience cost increases throughout our relationships with our clients, we make every effort to
structure an engagement fee arrangement, which will meet your needs while providing us with sufficient
resources to perform the expected work.

TR T T T -
description - s -
AL ISR A e e e e e e e o

Task #1: Initial Assessment — Business Process Review

Task #2. Risk Assessment

Task #3: Review, comment on, and recommend improvements of business and operational structural elements,
Task #4. Presentations to Committees and Individuals

Task #5: Facilitate a "Project Evaluation/Lessons Learned” Session at the end of the project and create a report
of the findings.

Total Fees for Services: $549,920*

* Travel and out-of-pocket expenses for the scheduled services outlined in this response are included in
the fee quote above.

Fee Assumptions

» NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE for access fo our thought leadership e-communications, webinars and
literature.

» NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE for use of our secure information-sharing tool (CiRT) to gather and
track audit requests or for additional data analytics tools that we incorporate into our audits
= Feesinclude professional time for work associated with on-site and off-site performance and
documentation of procedures, preparation of written drafts and final reports, and presentation of results.
*  Our policy is to bill for reasonable actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred.
= We will not surprise you with additional fees that have not been agreed to by all parties in advance.
We will not charge for routine telephone calls, which are considered to be part of the basic services.
If a question results in significant research or additional work or if we are requested to perform a

consulting project, such effort is billed separately. We will provide you with an estimate of fees for
such services and obtain management approval before proceeding.

Fees for Additional Services

Professional fees for special projects outside of the agreed-upon scope will be determined based on
project factors, such as type of project, subject matter experience required, scope, and resource
requirements. Prior to commencing additional services, we will obtain your approval and agreement on
the scoping and pricing.

B 3018 Crowe LLP WA LI L0
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We will conclude Phase 3 by presenting our risk assessment to management with specific areas to
explore further along with cur recommend approach such as such as mitigation, contingency, and
avoidance strategies to address the first component of Deliverable #2. The results are delivered in a
comprehensive reporting package that will enable the Board and management to make key decisions
regarding their focus and investment in risk management and mitigation efforts. We will customize the
reporting package based on SUS' needs, but a typical package will include the following:

= Executive Summary Report * Observations and Recommendations Summary
= Risk Profile * Risk Heat Map

We have included examples of what several of these reports could look like on the following pages;
however please note that we have significant reporting capabilities to customize reports to meet your
specifications.

Example Sample Risk Heat Map

@
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=
]
o
=
c
o
(/5]

Bl High

B Medium

B Low

Likelihood to occur

Phase 4: Control Assessment

We will confirm with management the greatest risk areas upon which to perform our control
assessment. In this phase, we will focus on clarifying and evaluating the various mitigating tactics and
controls that were previously identified, as well as any additional measures to provide a thorough
assessment of these high-risk areas.

Our first task for this phase is to conduct detailed process interviews with staff involved in the mitigating
tactic or control being analyzed, and perform walkthroughs to observe how the activity actually occurs.
Interviews will be comprehensive in nature and will incorporate as many staff involved in the process as
possible to get input on the process from as many employees as feasible. We will analyze the
information communicated to us and compare to the other interviews for this process and to the
walkthroughs to ensure a consistent process is being communicated. We will note any inconsistencies
between the interviews and between our interviews and our walkthrough. We may also request
additional documentation to substantiate managements' explanation and our understanding, as deemed
necessary.

© 3018 Crowe LLP WA SIS Com
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We fully appreciate that technology brings risk as well as rewards. Consequently, our firm has made
significant and ongoing investments in systems and resources focused on the protection of our client and
employee data. We employ a variety of security specialists and systems as part of a comprehensive
security program that uses both industry best practices and technology guidance on an ongoing basis. Our
security program includes resources and functions focused on information security management, security
architecture, security administration, data protection and encryption, and security awareness and training.
The security program, and its related documentation, is built on the ISO 27000 series of standards.

Crowe fully understands its responsibilities regarding client confidentiality, as well as the dynamic nature
of security threats, so our systems and processes are regularly reinforced, updated, and tested to help
protect the security and confidentiality of client records and information.
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-

References

Crowe References

Quality work, based upen strong competency and directed towards our client's needs, is the core
element of creating value for our clients. Quality service involves prompt and efficient service delivery
and effective communications with clients. Business relationships involve gaining trust and respect by
listening to our client's needs and developing a comprehensive understanding of their business and
vision for the future before providing advice. We have delivered high value to our clients for decades
and we feel that we are well suited to help SUS.

Our clients are the best judges of our ability to exceed your expectations. Please feel free to contact any
of the individuals listed below for an appraisal of our work.

= e - = ey

Contact Name and Tile  Elizabeth Sullivan, Chief Risk and Audit Officer
Email Address EOSullivan@WMATA, com
Phone Number 202.952.1671

Description of Services  Crowe was engaged to assist with the Enterprise Resource Management (ERM)
initiative undertaken by WMATA_ As part of the ERM efforts, Crowe assisted
WMATA with the development of the ERM framework and policies and procedures,
compiling the risk register and assessing risks by facilitating management interviews
and workshops.

Contact Name and Tile  Eric Munson, Chief Operating Officer
Email Address eric. munson@bpca.ny.gov
Phone Number 2124174155

Description of Services  Batter City Park Authority engaged Crowe to develop an authority-wide risk
assessment to use as the basis for a three-year, risk-based internal audit plan.
Crowe utilized a phased approached which included risk identification, risk
evaluation and internal audit plan development. Crowe conducted 20+ interviews
with BCPA employees and performed independent research to identify all risks,
which were summarized into 40 risk statement. Crowe ulilized this information to
establish a risk universe and conduct a risk workshop with BCPA employees where
each risk was ranked by likelihood and impact. Finally, Crowe analyzed the risks
and created a risk-based three-year audit plan.

Contact Name and Tile  Melinda Gildart, Controller

Email Address maildani@cps.edu

Phone Number T73.553.2747

Description of Services  Crowe teams completed a business process redesign and internal control
assessment over 6 major functions at CPS. One of the six functions included in this
assessment was the purchasing and procurement process for CPS. As part of this
process, process flow diagrams were created including risk/control matrixes to
identify major risks and key controls over the procurement function. Any risks that

were not mitigated were listed as gaps and a recommendaticn was provided to CPS
to help mitigate the risk.

© 2019 Crowe LLP WA T, 0T
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Huron References

Julie Bates, Executive Vice President
Dr. Charles L. Welch, President

Contact Name and Tile

Email Address ibates@aussystem.edu
Phone Mumber 501.660.1002 - Julie Bates

501.660.1000 = Dr. Charles L. Welch

Description of Services  Huron completed five unique academic program portfolio models that assessed
each campuses investment in selected course components to include course
compensation, academic unit expense, and financial aid. Upon completion of the
assessment, Huron provided four broad Sysiem level opportunities to include
improved collaboration, resource alignment, faculty effort protocols, and curricular
support. Each campus was provided with an additional, customized Fist of
opportunities based on the assessment results. As a result of the project, the ASU
System leadership collaborated with Campus leadership to create a Vice President
for Strategic Research position to assure these opportunities are implemented.

Contact Name and Tile  John Fuchke, Vice Chancellor for Organizational Assessment
Dr. Kyle Marrero, President

Email Address iohn.fuchko@usg.edu
Phone Mumber 404,962,3025 - John Fuchka

678.839.6442 = Dr. Charles L. Welch

Huron delivered a set of localized opportunities for each institution for further review

Ol tion o et T in support of efficiency and effectiveness. Each institution is
responsible for working with the System Office to finalize and implement
recommendations to reduce costs or enhance revenues, ultimately supporting
teaching, research, service, and/or patient care; these efforts are still in progress.
The system-wide report, including recommendations for process redesign,
restructuring, service delivery optimization, and other opportunities, is expected to
be delivered in January 2019,

© 2019 Crowe LLP WA IR, COMm
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Crowe Team

Mark Maraccini, CPA
Engagement Partner

Py

Profile

Mr. Maraccini has over 18 years' experience working with
educational instiutions. Mr. Maraccini has also recently
presented to the National Grants Management Association on
Risk Management and is slated to speak a the IIA International
Conference in 2019 on Entriprise Risk Management (ERM) in the
public sector. Furthermore, Mark served on a expert panel for the
lIA and AGA related to risks surrounding public sector internal
audit divisions.

Professional and Industry Experience

Over the past 18 years, Mark has worked extensively with
institutions of higher education conducting risk and internal
control assesssments. Mark has also conducted numerous
single and compliance audits which helped lay the foundation for
understanding internal controls and risks surrounding financial
reporting and federal compliance. Over the past 7 years, Mark
continued to expand his breadth over risks assessments with a
focus on Enterprise Risk Management.

Education & Certifications

= Bachelor of Arts, Accounting
o DePaul University | Chicago, lllincis
= Cerlified Public Accountant (CPA)

© 2019 Crows LLP
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State University System of Florida

Client Focus

Services:

Enterprise Risk Management
Intarnal Control Reviews
Internal Audits
Regulatory Compliance
Accounting Assistance
Performance Audits
Examinations

Audil Readiness

Finding Mitigation
Industrigs:

. Government

+«  Higher Education

. Mot-for-Profit

LR I R

Publications and Speaking

Engagements

+  Speaker, lllinois Institute of Internal
Auditors

«  Speaker, llincis CPA Society

«  Speaker, Mational Grants
Management Association

= Speaker. Association of Local
Govermmaent Auditors

Professional Affiliations:

«  Member, lingis CPA Society
+  Member, Amefican Institute of
Cenified Public Accountants
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Michael J. Del Giudice
CISSP, CRISC - Senior Manager

Profile

Mr. Del Giudice has 16 years of experience in the areas of
information security and data privacy. He is a security and
privacy thought leader, leading Growe's IT Risk Management
and Security Assessment solutions, while providing security
services to a broad range of Fortune 500 organizations across
industries.

Professional and Industry Experience

Mr. Del Giudice evaluates and developes solutions to improve IT
capability, maturity, and governance. He is experienced in critical
infrastructure environments, including insurance, financial
institutions, energy, transportation, healthcare, and government
sectors. Mr. Del Giudice assists management in the execution of
security strategies, including the solution design, requirements
gathering, and vendor selection.

He also designs and implements customized cybersecurity
frameworks addressing confidentiality, integrity, and availability
requirements. Mr. Del Giudice has experience with data security,
including data classification and inventory, control framework
design and implementation, and data strategies.

He designs and implements Business Impact Assessments,
Business Continuity Plans, and Disaster Recovery Programs. Mr.
Del Giudice understands Intellectual Property (IP) protection
procedures addressing logical, physical, and business controls:
and he has experience with multiple regulatory requirements,
such as GLBA, HIPAA, NERC CIP, and FTC Safeguards Rule,
as well as security frameworks such as NIST 800-53, NIST
Cybersecurity, and 1S0.

Education & Certifications
= Bachelor of Science, Computer Engineering
o University of lllincis | Champaign, lllinois
* Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP)
* Certified in Risk and Information System Contral (CRISC)
» Certified E Rail Safe

0208 Crowe LLP

127

State University System of Florida k|

Client Focus
Services:

IT Risk Management

Data Security and Privacy

Security and Maturity Assessments
Security Consulting

Publications and Speaking
Engagements

FSA Times, "Have You Conducted a
Data Protection Audit Lately?™

EUCI NERC Fundamentals course,
"MERC CIP Compliance” and "NERC
CIP Complanca”

Trained the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency (OCC) on IT security
1A Chicago’s annual seminar

MADA natienal conference, “Manage
your IT Risk and Improve your
Bottomn Ling.”

A, “Mobile Device Risk in an
Increasingly Connected World,”
MNADA national conference,
“Technical Security - Protecting your
Dealerships Information Assels.”

W1 Automobile & Truck Association,
the VT Automaobile Dealars
Association. and the Chicago
Automobile Trade Associaton
Dealer Magazine and Digital Dealer,
FTC's Safeguards Rule,

AT Fraud seminar

OH Information Security Conference,
“Security Strategy: Planning the Next
3105 Years,”

IL Banker's Association, Community
Bankers Associalion of IL, IN Credit
Unign League, Ml Banker's
Association, and ACBA

BAI Institute, Auditing Technology
Risks Instructor

Professional Affiliations

Institute of Intemnal Auditors
Chicago Chapter of ISACA

W, SO DO
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Bill Dykstra, CRMA, CIA

Risk Management SME

Profile

Mr. Dyksira specializes in enterprise risk management in Crowe's
Risk - Public Sector Services. He is an experienced project manager
and has an internal audit background with 16 years of experience
serving public and not-for-profit organizations. During his career, Mr,
Dykstra has provided internal audit and risk consulting services to
public and private educational institutions, transportation agencies,
and a various not-for-profit service organizations and membership
associations,

Professional and Industry Experience

Since joining Crowe in May 2016, Mr. Dykstra has focused on
promoting ERM and internal control best practices in not-for-profit,
government, and higher education organizations. This has included
leading several enterprise risk assessment workshops at colleges and
universities. It also involved development of ERM training materials
for a professional assocation in Washington D.C which promotes
ERM and provides related professional development for federal
agencies. Currently, he supports an enterprise risk assesment
initiative at a major transit authority in Washington D.C., and is
assisling their leadership in identifying and responding to the major
risks to their organization,

In prier years, Mr. Dykstra was responsible for developing a tailored
ERM framework for an international not-for-profit service organization
and participated in its initial implementation. He has been an internal
audit manager, enterprise project track leader, and business
intelligence department manager.

Mr. Dykstra spends a substantial amount of time focusing on thought
leadership activities in ERM and internal controls best practices. He
has performed several recent speaking engagements for both internal
and external training events, on the topic of ERM and internal control
best practices specific to governmental entities, not-for-profit
organizations, and institutions of higher education.

Professional Affiliations:

= Institute of Internal Auditors
= Association of Federal Enterprise Risk Managers

& 3018 Crows LLP
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Client Focus

Services:

*  Enterprise Risk Management
«  Risk Consulting

*  [Internal Ausdit

+*  Process Redesign
Industries:

+«  Not-for-Profit

«  Government
= Higher Education

Community Involvement:

+«  Goodwill Industries of Denver |
Velduntear

& Junior Achigvement |
Volundeer Trainer

»  Greater Chicago Food
Depository | Volunteer

Publications and Speaking
Engagements:

s« 2018 Crowe MNot-For-Profit and
Higher Education Webinar
Series, “How Failure o
Manage Risk Could Threaten
Your Mission™

« 2017 Crowe Risk Summit,
OME Circular A-123 Update

+ 2017 Florida Govemnment
Finance Officars Association
Annual Conference, Enterprise
Risk Management Overview

* 2017 lllinois CPA Society, Not-
for-Profit Advanced Accounting
& Uniform Guidance
Conferance, Intemal Controls
for Mot-for-Profit Organizations
- Bast Practices and Common
Deficiencies

+ 2016 Crowe Risk New Hine
Crientation engagement,
Public Sector Risk Overview
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Jonathan Dunn , CPA
Team Lead

Profile

Mr. Dunn has several years of professional experience,
specializing on the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular No. A-123. Prior to joining Crowe, Mr. Dunn performed
testing on the OMB Circular No. A-123, Management's
Responsibility for Enterprise Risk Management and Internal
Control, for federal agencies. Mr. Dunn has performed A-123
testing on business processes including but not limited to;
Financial Reporting, Grants Management, Budget, and Cash
Management.

Professional and Industry Experience

Prior to joining Crowe, Mr. Dunn performed testing on the OMB
Circular No. A-123, Management's Responsibility for Enterprise

Risk Management and Internal Control, for federal agencies. Mr.

Dunn has performed A-123 testing on business processes
including but not limited to; Financial Reporting, Grants
Management, Budget, and Cash Management.

Education & Certifications

= Masters, Accountancy
o George Washington University | Washington D.C.

« Bachelor of Science, Finance and Analytics, Economics
o Le Moyne College | Syracuse, NY

« Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

© 2010 Crowe LLP

132

Client Focus

Services:
Regulatory Compliance Consulting
= Internal Audit
+  Government Audit
Industries:
+  Public Sector



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

133



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

134



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

135



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Greg Bedell

Managing Director
913-593-4439
gbedell@huronconsultinggroup.com

Greg has worked in the higher education, healthcare, government, and not-for-profit environments for
mare than 23 years. He has specialized in assisting universities and research institutions with sirategic
efficiency and effectivness assessments, cost reduction, organizational redesign, operational
improvement, process reengineering, systems selection, research administration management and

compliance, and the implementation of effort reporting solutions.
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

+

T

+

ation

Warked with a large research university over two-years lo restructure and improve the research administration function, identify oppertunities for
efficiency through shared services within central vice chancelior units and distributed academic units, redesign the budget / resource allocation
process, and perform efficiency and effectiveness assessments in human resources, infarmation technology, finance and adminisiration, and
procurement / sourcing

Waorked with a large private university to identify opportunities for cost reduction in the areas of central fiscal units, faciiies management,
procurement and sourcing, and research administration,

Worked with two public universities with program management, shared services assessment, and classification / compensation alignment as
these organizations menged.

Worked with an institution to assess opportunities for improvement and cost reduction in the areas of information technology, assessed post
enterprise resource planning (ERP) chalenges, student services, procurement, and several specific business areas of the institution,

Led the development of Huron's ecrt compliance technalogy, including the beta lesting at a large public research institution and the subssquent
development of the commercial package, including two subsequent upgrades.
ﬁbrkedﬂawhaﬁmmﬂnunwerﬂymimmummmgramofwm. compéance, and education delivery following govemment
intervention at the institution.

Worked with a variely of insfilutions to draft vanious research related policies, obtain institutional approval, and bufld siakeholder consensus.
Worked wilh a private research institution 1o idarrﬁfynppumimhrhmrmmmnmadnﬁmaha%amafdhirgawﬂﬂmapr
organizational transition.

Wovked with a state system of higher education 1o assess the feasibility of moving the system's several institutions to a common ERP.
Developed a “cormective action plan’ for a large, public research universily,

Participated in a two day refreal with a research center's senior manajemant o reorganize the cenler's adminisirative functions.

Conducted an assessment of the onganizational reporting within the finance division of a medium-sized privale university.

Worked with mid-sized public institution fo perform a business process redasign pilo! program.

Developed a strategic plan for the administrative cperations of a $2.2 billion higher education system.

Conducted an eight week assessment of the administrative operations of & major public research univarsity with a $1.6 billion budget. The
aswmmpm-iﬁadlh&uiversityw'rmins'ghtsimummmamuihinmumgamzaﬁmwxﬁwemupﬁmlbmdmmm,as
well as eperational cost efficiency, particularly as it related to the university's recent ERP implementation,

Conducted a comprehensive process reengineering of a major university's financial, student services, human resources, information technology,
mm,mmlmmamimmmﬁsmaaammm&nmphrrmtaumﬂmERFwam.

Developed an enferprise-wide reporting strategy for a Midwest medium-sized hesith maintenance organization (HMO),

Conducted an operational reporting gap analysis for an HMO which was preparing to replace its existing clasms. enroliment, and medical
management sysiems with advanced lechnologies.

Conducted a feasibility assessment for the school of medicine at a major public research university regarding the design and development of a
financial and management reporting system.

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

+

+

Master of Business Administration, University of llinois
Bachelor of Science, Accountancy, University of lllinois

SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS

Frequent speaker at National Council of University Research Administrators (NCURA) and the Society of Research
Administrators (SRA) conferences.
Frequent speaker at National Association of College and University Business Dfficers (NACUBO ) conferences.

THURON
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ITEM: INFO-5

UCF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
April 23, 2019

Title: Florida Auditor General Financial Audit Report

Background:
Section 1010.30 of the 2018 Florida Statutes states:

“If an audit contains a significant finding, the district school board, the Florida College System institution
board of trustees, or the university board of trustees shall conduct an audit overview during a
public meeting.”

The Florida Auditor General issued their Financial Audit report on UCF in March of 2019 (report number
2019-168).

This report contained a material weakness stating that “University controls were ineffective to prevent, or
timely detect and correct, the unallowable use of the legislatively appropriated carryforward funds for
construction activities.”

Issues to be Considered:

No action is required. Management’s response to this issue was included in the Auditor General’s
operational audit report 2019-095. The corrective actions taken and to be taken were provided in that
report’s response and a timeline is being developed by management for full implementation of the stated
corrective actions.

Alternatives to Decision:
For information only.

Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding:
No funding impact.

Recommended Action:
Include this topic in the committee’s update to the full UCF Board of Trustees at their next board meeting.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action:
Section 1010.30 of the 2018 Florida Statutes.

Committee Chair or Chairman of the Board approval:
Committee Chair Beverly Seay approved the agenda and all supporting documentation.
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Submitted by:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive

Supporting Documentation:
Attachment A: Florida Auditor General Financial Audit Report

Facilitators/Presenters:
Robert Taft, Chief Audit Executive
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Attachment A

Report No. 2019-168
March 2019

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2018

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA
Auditor General
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Board of Trustees and President

During the 2017-18 fiscal year, Dr. John C. Hitt served as President of the University of Central
Florida and the following individuals served as Members of the Board of Trustees:

Marcos R. Marchena, Chair Nicholas Larkins through 5-23-182

Robert A. Garvy, Vice Chair John Lord
Joshua Boloia from 5-24-182  Alex Martins

Kenneth Bradley Beverly J. Seay

Clarence H. Brown Ill, M.D. Dr. William Self®
through 2-1-18 John R. Sprouls

Joseph D. Conte David Walsh

Danny Gaekwad from 2-2-18  William E. Yeargin

2 Student Body President.
b Faculty Senate Chair.

The Auditor General conducts audits of governmental entities to provide the Legislature, Florida’s citizens, public entity
management, and other stakeholders unbiased, timely, and relevant information for use in promoting government
accountability and stewardship and improving government operations.
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SUMMARY

SUMMARY OF REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our audit disclosed that the basic financial statements of the University of Central Florida (a component
unit of the State of Florida) were presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with prescribed
financial reporting standards.

SUMMARY OF REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE

We noted a certain matter involving the University’s internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that we consider to be a material weakness as discussed in Finding No. 2018-001.

The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, as discussed
in Finding No. 2018-001.

AUDIT OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE

Our audit objectives were to determine whether the University of Central Florida and its officers with
administrative and stewardship responsibilities for University operations had:

e Presented the University’s basic financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

e Established and implemented internal control over financial reporting and compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements; and

o Complied with the various provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
that are material to the financial statements.

The scope of this audit included an examination of the University’s basic financial statements as of and
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We obtained an understanding of the University’s environment,
including its internal control, and assessed the risk of material misstatement necessary to plan the audit
of the basic financial statements. We also examined various transactions to determine whether they
were executed, in both manner and substance, in accordance with governing provisions of laws, rules,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.

AUDIT METHODOLOGY

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable standards contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

Claude Denson Pepper Building, Suite G74 %

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA 111 West Madison Street Phone: (850) 412-2722
Auditor General Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Fax: (850) 488-6975

The President of the Senate, the Speaker of the
House of Representatives, and the
Legislative Auditing Committee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the University of Central Florida, a component
unit of the State of Florida, and its aggregate discretely presented component units as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the blended component units, which represent 0.5 percent, 7.3 percent,
0.5 percent and 0.02 percent, respectively, of the assets, liabilities, net position, and revenues reported
for the University of Central Florida. In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the aggregate
discretely presented component units, which represent 100 percent of the transactions and account
balances of the discretely presented component units columns. The financial statements for the blended
and aggregate discretely presented component units were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those financial
statements, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
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the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the University of Central
Florida and of its aggregate discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2. to the financial statements, the University implemented Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, which is a change in accounting principle that addresses accounting and
financial reporting for other postemployment benefits. This affects the comparability of amounts reported
in the 2017-18 fiscal year with the amounts reported for the 2016-17 fiscal year. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, the Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Total
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability, Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability — Florida Retirement System Pension Plan, Schedule of University
Contributions — Florida Retirement System Pension Plan, Schedule of the University’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability — Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan,
Schedule of University Contributions — Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan, and Notes to
Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
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financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 20, 2019, on our consideration of the University of Central Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters included under the heading INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University of Central Florida’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

LA A Mo

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA
Tallahassee, Florida
March 20, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of the University for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and notes thereto. The MD&A, and financial statements and notes thereto, are
the responsibility of University management. The MD&A contains financial activity of the University for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The University’s assets and deferred outflows of resources totaled $2 billion at June 30, 2018. This
balance reflects a $106.5 million, or 5.5 percent, increase as compared to June 30, 2017, primarily from
higher construction activity. Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased by $288.7 million, or
44.6 percent, totaling $936.1 million at June 30, 2018. As a result, the University’s net position decreased
by $182.2 million, resulting in a year-end balance of $1.1 billion. The increases in liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, and decrease in net position were largely impacted by the adoption of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This accounting standard requires the University, as a
participating employer in the State Group Health Insurance Program, to recognize its proportionate share
of the net other postemployment benefits liability of the State Group Health Insurance Program
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans. Changes in liabilities are recognized through the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, or reported as deferred inflows or
outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position, depending on the nature of the change. The
initial adoption also resulted in a decrease to beginning net position of $220.5 million.

The University’s operating revenues totaled $550.3 million for the 2017-18 fiscal year, representing a
5.2 percent increase compared to the 2016-17 fiscal year due mainly to increases in grants and contracts
and auxiliary revenues. Operating expenses totaled $1.1 billion for the 2017-18 fiscal year, representing
an increase of 8.5 percent as compared to the 2016-17 fiscal year due mainly to increases in
compensation and employee benefits and scholarships, fellowships, and waivers.

Net position represents the residual interest in the University’s assets and deferred outflows of resources
after deducting liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The University’s comparative total net
position by category for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2017, is shown in the
following graph:

Report No. 2019-168
Page 4 March 2019

148



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Net Position

(In Thousands)
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The deficit unrestricted net position for 2018 can be attributed primarily to the full recognition of certain
long-term liabilities (i.e., compensated absences payable, other postemployment benefits payable and
net pension liabilities) in the current unrestricted funds that are expected to be paid over time. Additional
information about the University’s deficit net position in individual funds is presented in Note 4. in the

accompanying notes to financial statements.

The following chart provides a graphical presentation of University revenues by category for the

2017-18 fiscal year:

Total Revenues
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 35, the University’s financial report consists of three basic financial
statements: the statement of net position; the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position; and the statement of cash flows. The financial statements, and notes thereto, encompass the
University and its component units. These component units include:
e Blended Component Units:
o UCF Finance Corporation
o University of Central Florida College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program
e Discretely Presented Component Units:
University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc.
University of Central Florida Research Foundation, Inc.
UCF Athletics Association, Inc.
UCF Convocation Corporation
UCF Stadium Corporation

Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization, Inc.

O O O O O o

Information regarding these component units, including summaries of the blended and discretely
presented component units’ separately issued financial statements, is presented in the notes to financial
statements. This MD&A focuses on the University, excluding the discretely presented component units.
For those component units reporting under GASB standards, MD&A information is included in their
separately issued audit reports.

The Statement of Net Position

The statement of net position reflects the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources of the University, using the accrual basis of accounting, and presents the financial
position of the University at a specified time. Assets, plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities,
less deferred inflows of resources, equals net position, which is one indicator of the University’s current
financial condition. The changes in net position that occur over time indicate improvement or deterioration
in the University’s financial condition.

The following summarizes the University’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, and net position at June 30:
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Condensed Statement of Net Position at June 30

(In Thousands)

2018 2017
Assets
Current Assets $ 628,594 $ 602,302
Capital Assets, Net 1,147,334 1,058,909
Other Noncurrent Assets 106,460 144,896
Total Assets 1,882,388 1,806,107
Deferred Outflows of Resources 151,467 121,206
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 123,159 111,498
Noncurrent Liabilities 760,062 534,411
Total Liabilities 883,221 645,909
Deferred Inflows of Resources 52,848 1,449
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 982,635 887,635
Restricted 146,491 221,746
Unrestricted (31,340) 170,574
Total Net Position $ 1,097,786 $ 1,279,955

Total assets as of June 30, 2018, increased by $76.3 million, or 4.2 percent. This increase is primarily
due to higher capital related activity including building construction, acquisitions, and donations of capital
assets. Major capital projects include research, academic and partnership facilities, the development of
a downtown campus, and renovations and modernization of the library.

Total liabilities as of June 30, 2018, increased by $237.3 million or 36.7 percent, deferred inflows and
outflows of resources increased by $51.4 million and $30.3 million, respectively, and total net position
decreased $182.2 million. These changes were primarily related to annual changes in actuarial
determined amounts for other postemployment benefits and pensions.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the University’s revenue and
expense activity, categorized as operating and nonoperating. Revenues and expenses are recognized
when earned or incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The following summarizes the University’s activity for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal years:
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

201718 2016-17
Operating Revenues $ 550,334 $ 523,006
Less, Operating Expenses 1,100,003 1,013,825
Operating Loss (549,669) (490,819)
Net Nonoperating Revenues 568,965 485,568
Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues 19,296 (5,251)
Other Revenues 18,988 60,633
Net Increase In Net Position 38,284 55,382
Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,279,955 1,224,573
Adjustment to Beginning Net Position (1) (220,453) -
Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated 1,059,502 1,224,573
Net Position, End of Year $ 1,097,786 $ 1,279,955

(1) Asdiscussed in Notes 2. and 3. of the financial statements, the University’s beginning
net position was decreased in conjunction with the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 75.

Operating Revenues

GASB Statement No. 35 categorizes revenues as either operating or nonoperating. Operating revenues
generally result from exchange transactions where each of the parties to the transaction either gives or
receives something of equal or similar value.

The following summarizes the operating revenues by source that were used to fund operating activities
for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal years:

Operating Revenues

For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
2017-18 2016-17

Student Tuition and Fees, Net $ 312,163 $ 313,265
Grants and Contracts 135,350 118,826
Sales and Senvices of Auxiliary Enterprises, Net 91,435 81,415
Other 11,386 9,500
Total Operating Revenues $ 550,334 $ 523,006

The following chart presents the University’s operating revenues for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal
years:
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Operating Revenues

(In Thousands)

$312,163
Student Tuition and Fees, Net $313,265
$135,350
Grants and Contracts $118,826
Sales and Services 591,435
of Auxiliary Enterprises, Net $81,415
| $11,386
Other $9,500
4 : :
S0 $200,000 $400,000
42017-18 m2016-17

Total operating revenues increased by $27.3 million, or 5.2 percent. Grants and contracts increased by
$16.5 million, or 13.9 percent, primarily related to increases in Federal and private grants. Net sales and
services of auxiliary enterprises increased by $10 million, or 12.3 percent, and was primarily due to higher
revenues from the College of Medicine residency program.

Operating Expenses

Expenses are categorized as operating or nonoperating. The majority of the University’s expenses are
operating expenses as defined by GASB Statement No. 35. GASB gives financial reporting entities the
choice of reporting operating expenses in the functional or natural classifications. The University has
chosen to report the expenses in their natural classification on the statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position and has displayed the functional classification in the notes to financial statements.

The following summarizes operating expenses by natural classification for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal
years:

Operating Expenses
For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

201718 201617
Compensation and Employee Benefits $ 701,050 $ 649,234
Senices and Supplies 189,787 189,554
Utilities and Communications 22,916 22,312
Scholarships, Fellowships, and Waivers 119,990 89,931
Depreciation 66,260 62,794
Total Operating Expenses $1,100,003 $1,013,825
Report No. 2019-168
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The following chart presents the University’s operating expenses for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal
years:

Operating Expenses

(In Thousands)
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Operating expenses increased $86.2 million, or 8.5 percent, over the 2016-17 fiscal year. Compensation
and employee benefits increased by $51.8 million. Salaries increased $35.8 million due to investments
in the University faculty hiring plan including support personnel, growth in post-doctoral medical resident
programs, and annual salary increases. Retirement expenses including actuarial determined pension
expenses increased $12.5 million. Scholarships, fellowships, and waivers increased by $30.1 million,
resulting from increased awards for the Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program, Federal Pell Grants,
and Florida Student Assistance Grants.

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Certain revenue sources that the University relies on to provide funding for operations, including State
noncapital appropriations, Federal and State student financial aid, and investment income, are defined
by GASB as nonoperating. Nonoperating expenses include capital financing costs and other costs
related to capital assets. The following summarizes the University’s nonoperating revenues and
expenses for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal years:
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Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
2017-18 2016-17

State Noncapital Appropriations $ 375,458 $360,532
Federal and State Student Financial Aid 192,728 140,560
Investment Income 15,592 12,998
Other Nonoperating Revenues 25,766 17,694
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (79) (502)
Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (7,534) (8,014)
Other Nonoperating Expenses (32,966) (37,700)
Net Nonoperating Revenues $568,965 $485,568

Net nonoperating revenues increased by $83.4 million, or 17.2 percent, primarily due to an increase in
Federal and State student financial aid of $52.2 million. The University received additional funds for the
Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program, Federal Pell Grants, and Florida Student Assistance Grants
in the 2017-18 fiscal year. State noncapital appropriations increased by $14.9 million due to additional
emerging pre-eminence funding and other appropriations supporting new faculty, doctoral assistantships,
and scholarships.

Other Revenues

This category is composed of State capital appropriations, capital grants, contracts, donations, and fees.
The following summarizes the University’s other revenues for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal years:
Other Revenues
For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
201718  2016-17

State Capital Appropriations $ 12,472 $ 45,552
Capital Grants, Contracts, Donations, and Fees 6,516 15,081
Total $ 18,988 $ 60,633

Other revenues decreased $41.6 million, or 68.7 percent, primarily due to a decrease in State capital
appropriations.

The Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows provides information about the University’s financial results by reporting the
major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents. This statement will assist in evaluating the
University’s ability to generate net cash flows, its ability to meet its financial obligations as they come
due, and its need for external financing. Cash flows from operating activities show the net cash used by
the operating activities of the University. Cash flows from capital financing activities include all plant
funds and related long-term debt activities. Cash flows from investing activities show the net source and
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use of cash related to purchasing or selling investments, and earning income on those investments. Cash
flows from noncapital financing activities include those activities not covered in other sections.

The following summarizes cash flows for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 fiscal years:

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
2017-18 2016-17

Cash Provided (Used) by:

Operating Activities $ (440,992) $ (389,998)
Noncapital Financing Activities 554,407 483,367
Capital and Related Financing Activities (110,880) (106,644)
Investing Activities 4,226 (16,020)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,761 (29,295)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 19,023 48,318
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 25784 $ 19,023

Cash and cash equivalents increased $6.8 million. Cash used by operating activities increased by
$51 million compared to the 2016-17 fiscal year primarily due to an increase in cash payments to and on
behalf of employees for compensation and benefits. Cash inflows from noncapital financing activities
increased by $71 million primarily due to an increase in cash received from Federal and State student
financial aid and State appropriations net of pass-through disbursements. Cash provided by investing
activities increased by $20.2 million primarily due to prior year purchases of long-term fixed income
investments from proceeds received from liquidations of cash equivalent money-market investments.

Major sources of funds came from State noncapital appropriations ($375.5 million), net student tuition
and fees ($310.2 million), Federal and State student financial aid ($193 million), grants and contracts
($135.2 million), and net sales and services of auxiliary enterprises ($93.6 million). Major uses of funds
were for payments made to and on behalf of employees ($660.4 million), payments to suppliers
($210.6 million), payments related to the purchase or construction of capital assets ($144.9 million), and
payments to students for scholarships and fellowships ($120 million).

CAPITAL ASSETS, CAPITAL EXPENSES AND COMMITMENTS,
AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2018, the University had $2 billion in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of
$836.1 million, for net capital assets of $1.1 billion. Depreciation charges for the current fiscal year totaled
$66.3 million. The following table summarizes the University’s capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, at June 30:
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Capital Assets, Net at June 30

(In Thousands)

2018 2017
Land $ 42,742 $ 36,159
Construction in Progress 90,060 81,061
Buildings 902,373 838,249
Infrastructure and Other Improvements 37,358 31,994
Furniture and Equipment 40,909 40,482
Library Resources 26,082 24,155
Leasehold Improvements 7,163 6,088
Works of Art and Historical Treasures 647 721
Capital Assets, Net $1,147,334  $1,058,909

Additional information about the University’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Capital Expenses and Commitments

Major capital expenses through June 30, 2018, were incurred on projects completed: the UCF
Interdisciplinary Research and Incubator Facility and Partnership IV Phase I, and projects currently in
progress: the UCF Downtown Academic Building, John C. Hitt Library Renovations, and Trevor Colbourn
Hall. The University’s major construction commitments at June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Amount
(In Thousands)

Total Committed $ 173,872
Completed to Date (90,060)
Balance Committed $ 83,812

Additional information about the University’s construction commitments is presented in the notes to
financial statements.

Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2018, the University had $180.6 million in outstanding capital improvement debt payable,
and loans and notes payable, representing an increase of $3.6 million, or 2 percent, from the prior fiscal
year. The following table summarizes the outstanding long-term debt by type for the fiscal years ended
June 30:
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Long-Term Debt at June 30

(In Thousands)

2018 2017
Capital Improvement Debt Payable $117,242 $ 125,664
Bonds Payable - 51,315
Loans and Notes Payable 63,359 -
Total $180,601 $176,979

Additional information about the University’s long-term debt is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

EcoNomic FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE

The University’s economic condition is closely tied to that of the State of Florida. Because of limited
economic growth and increased demand for State resources, only a modest increase in State funding is
anticipated in the 2018-19 fiscal year. The University manages this through the continual efficient and
strategic use of resources and entrepreneurial efforts by academic, administrative, and auxiliary
departments. The budget that the Florida Legislature adopted for the 2018-19 fiscal year provided a
2 percent increase for State universities, including $20 million in new recurring performance-based
funding, plus $30 million specifically aimed at meeting the State’s performance goals. The University
received a total of $6 million of this new funding.

The Florida Legislature also provided $20 million in new funding for institutions that meet emerging
pre-eminence and pre-eminence metrics aimed to advance the State’s national reputation for higher
education. The University of Central Florida qualified for emerging pre-eminence status and received
$1.5 million of this new funding, which will be invested in initiatives to enhance the University’s reputation
as a global research institution and advance toward pre-eminence status.

In addition to State funding, the University relies on other revenue streams to maintain the open access
to and high quality of its academic programs. Net tuition and fee revenue remained steady from the
2016-17 fiscal year to the 2017-18 fiscal year. Overall, enroliment increased 2.9 percent with a student
count of approximately 66,180. The University continues to invest in recruitment, retention, and academic
advising initiatives to manage enroliment and support students’ success.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Questions concerning information provided in the MD&A or other required supplemental information, and
financial statements and notes thereto, or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the University Controller, University of Central Florida, 12424 Research Parkway, Suite
300, Orlando, Florida 32826-3249.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
A Component Unit of the State of Florida
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net
Due from State
Due from Component Units
Due from University
Inventories
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Investments
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Due from Component Units
Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits

Pensions

Deferred Amount on Debt Refundings

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Construction Contracts Payable
Salary and Wages Payable
Deposits Payable
Due to Component Units
Due to University
Unearned Revenue
Other Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities - Current Portion:
Capital Improvement Debt Payable
Bonds Payable
Loans and Notes Payable
Certificates of Participation Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable
Net Pension Liability

Total Current Liabilities

University

Component
Units

$ 15,035,677
3,259,264
482,654,905
63,673,249
1,328,258
54,725,914
1,128,037
2,518,321
4,270,526

$ 23,148,532
14,409,735
18,718,120

416,904
18,549,356
34,783
1,777,311

628,594,151

77,054,741

7,489,055
86,045,062
4,927,741
1,014,313,741
133,019,996
5,800,498
2,198,226

2,989,201
212,992,971
18,894,977
116,844,051
60,003,940

3,008,507

1,253,794,319

414,733,647

1,882,388,470

491,788,388

7,544,000
130,985,600
12,936,932

5,133,159

151,466,532

5,133,159

15,423,789
15,029,921
24,792,352
11,253,542
18,549,356
15,858,633

2,430,622

8,270,000

2,498,000

4,014,061
3,446,000
1,592,767

6,554,905

416,904
1,128,037
13,657,058
2,514,854

4,881,000
2,737,000
4,355,000

77,500

123,159,043

36,322,258
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UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
A Component Unit of the State of Florida
Statement of Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2018

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Improvement Debt Payable
Bonds Payable
Loans and Notes Payable
Certificates of Participation Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable
Net Pension Liability
Unearned Revenues
Due to University
Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits
Pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Nonexpendable:
Endowment
Restricted for Expendable:
Debt Senice
Loans
Capital Projects
Other
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Component
University Units

108,972,210 -
- 118,823,072

60,861,000 22,992,999
- 100,040,000

53,329,664 691,558
297,066,000 -
231,550,093 -
- 27,140

- 5,800,498

8,283,443 373,968
760,062,410 248,749,235
883,221,453 285,071,493
42,480,000 -
10,367,486 -
52,847,486 -
982,635,149 (71,227,921)
- 136,083,134

1,418,562 -
3,224,757 -
128,591,852 693,884
13,255,701 118,996,395
(31,339,958) 27,304,562

$ 1,097,786,063

$ 211,850,054

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
A Component Unit of the State of Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES
Operating Revenues:

Student Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship
Allowances of $169,884,143 (Pledged for Capital
Improvement Debt: $17,518,614 for Student
Health and $14,706,584 for Parking)

Federal Grants and Contracts

State and Local Grants and Contracts

Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts

Sales and Senices of Auxiliary Enterprises, Net
(Pledged for Capital Improvement Debt:

$29,521,514 for Housing and $6,280,813 for Parking)

Gifts and Donations

Interest on Loans and Notes Receivable

Other Operating Revenues:

(Pledged for Capital Improvement Debt: $399,474 for

Housing and $1,129,249 for Parking)

Total Operating Revenues

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:

Compensation and Employee Benefits

Senices and Supplies
Utilities and Communications

Scholarships, Fellowships, and Waivers

Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State Noncapital Appropriations

Federal and State Student Financial Aid

Investment Income

Other Nonoperating Revenues

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt
Other Nonoperating Expenses

Net Nonoperating Revenues
Income Before Other Revenues

State Capital Appropriations

Capital Grants, Contracts, Donations, and Fees

Additions to Permanent Endowments
Increase in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Adjustment to Beginning Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Net Position, End of Year

Component
University Units

$ 312,163,236 -
100,966,565 -
8,979,649 -
25,404,197 -
91,434,807 -

- 44,158,583

114,405 -
11,271,405 126,134,388
550,334,264 170,292,971
701,049,970 19,389,015
189,786,518 115,585,159
22,916,333 -
119,990,341 -
66,259,952 5,674,815
1,100,003,114 140,648,989
(549,668,850) 29,643,982
375,457,594 -
192,727,881 -
15,591,848 407,291
25,766,297 14,033,750
(78,755) -
(7,534,030) (9,368,779)
(32,966,232) (2,898,347)
568,964,603 2,173,915
19,295,753 31,817,897
12,472,073 -
6,516,188 -

- 5,693,092

38,284,014 37,510,989
1,279,955,049 169,386,134
(220,453,000) 4,952,931
1,059,502,049 174,339,065
$ 1,097,786,063 $ 211,850,054

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
A Component Unit of the State of Florida
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student Tuition and Fees, Net

Grants and Contracts

Sales and Senvices of Auxiliary Enterprises, Net
Interest on Loans and Notes Receivable
Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Senices
Payments to Students for Scholarships and Fellowships
Loans Issued to Students

Collection on Loans to Students

Other Operating Receipts

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Noncapital Appropriations

Federal and State Student Financial Aid

Federal Direct Loan Program Receipts

Federal Direct Loan Program Disbursements

Net Change in Funds Held for Others

Other Nonoperating Disbursements

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Capital Debt

State Capital Appropriations

Other Receipts for Capital Projects

Purchase or Construction of Capital Assets

Principal Paid on Capital Debt and Leases

Interest Paid on Capital Debt and Leases

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments
Purchases of Investments

Investment Income

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$ 310,232,223
135,189,532
93,628,755
107,116
(660,449,757)
(210,561,501)
(119,990,340)
(321,005)
1,034,355

10,138,651
(440,991,971)

375,457,594
193,009,852
252,634,150

(252,634,150)

(2,048,956)

(12,011,011)
554,407,479

95,059,505
45,969,360
5,408,897
(144,900,911
(91,960,493

)
)
(20,456,632)

(110,880,274)

827,249,101
(834,196,711)

11,173,837
4,226,227

6,761,461

19,022,535
$ 25,783,996
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UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
A Component Unit of the State of Florida
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS
TO NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss
to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Changes in Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Receivables, Net
Inventories
Other Assets
Accounts Payable
Salaries and Wages Payable
Deposits Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Unearned Revenue
Other Liabilities
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Other Postemployment Benefits
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Other Postemployment Benefits
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Unrealized gains on investments were recognized as an increase to investment
income on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, but
are not cash transactions for the statement of cash flows.

Losses from the disposal of capital assets were recognized on the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, but are not cash transactions
for the statement of cash flows.

A donation of capital assets were recognized on the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, but are not cash transactions for the
statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

University

$ (549,668,850)

66,259,952

(3,911,636)
(197,195)
(523,345)

1,829,061
1,561,362
65,730
2,639,883
3,592,790
961,308

(21,716,000)

33,539,407

(4,493,000)
42,480,000
(22,330,064)

8,918,626
$ (440,991,971)

$ 4,185,671
$ (78,755)
$ 5,525,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity. The University is a separate public instrumentality that is part of the State university
system of public universities, which is under the general direction and control of the Florida Board of
Governors. The University is directly governed by a Board of Trustees (Trustees) consisting of
13 members. The Governor appoints 6 citizen members and the Board of Governors appoints 5 citizen
members. These members are confirmed by the Florida Senate and serve staggered terms of 5 years.
The chair of the faculty senate and the president of the student body of the University are also members.
The Board of Governors establishes the powers and duties of the Trustees. The Trustees are responsible
for setting policies for the University, which provide governance in accordance with State law and Board
of Governors’ Regulations, and selecting the University President. The University President serves as
the Executive Officer and the Corporate Secretary of the Trustees and is responsible for administering
the policies prescribed by the Trustees.

Criteria for defining the reporting entity are identified and described in the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
Sections 2100 and 2600. These criteria were used to evaluate potential component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
primary government’s financial statements to be misleading. Based on the application of these criteria,
the University is a component unit of the State of Florida, and its financial balances and activities are
reported in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report by discrete presentation.

Blended Component Units. Based on the application of the criteria for determining component units,
the UCF Finance Corporation (Corporation) and the University of Central Florida College of Medicine
Self-Insurance Program (Program) are included within the University’s reporting entity as blended
component units, and are therefore reported as if they are part of the University. The Corporation’s
purpose is to receive, hold, invest, and administer property and to make expenditures to or for the benefit
of the University. The Program’s purpose is to provide comprehensive general liability and professional
liability coverage for the University’s Trustees and students for claims and actions arising from clinical
activities of the College of Medicine, College of Nursing, UCF Health Services, College of Health
Professions and Sciences (previously included in the College of Health and Public Affairs), and the
Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization, Inc., faculty, staff, and resident physicians. Condensed
financial statements for the University’s blended component units are shown in a subsequent note. The
condensed financial statements are reported net of eliminations.

Discretely Presented Component Units. Based on the application of the criteria for determining
component units, the following direct-support organizations (as provided for in Section 1004.28,
Florida Statutes, and Board of Governors Regulation 9.011) and the Central Florida Clinical Practice
Organization, Inc. (an affiliated organization), are included within the University reporting entity as
discretely presented component units. These legally separate, not-for-profit, corporations are organized
and operated to assist the University to achieve excellence by providing supplemental resources from
private gifts and bequests, and valuable education support services and are governed by separate
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boards. The Statutes authorize these organizations to receive, hold, invest, and administer property and
to make expenditures to or for the benefit of the University. These organizations and their purposes are
explained as follows:

e University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc. is a not-for-profit Florida corporation whose principal
function is to provide charitable and educational aid to the University.

e University of Central Florida Research Foundation, Inc. was organized to promote and encourage
as well as assist in, the research activities of the University’s faculty, staff, and students.

e UCF Athletics Association, Inc. was organized to promote intercollegiate athletics to benefit the
University and surrounding communities.

e UCF Convocation Corporation was created to finance and construct a convocation center, and to
manage the Towers student housing and its related retail space on the north side of campus.

e UCF Stadium Corporation was created to finance, build, and administer an on-campus football
stadium.

e Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization, Inc. is an affiliated organization component unit of
the University and was formed for the purpose of supporting the medical educational program
and clinical faculty within the College of Medicine.

e Limbitless Solutions, Inc. is a not-for-profit Florida corporation whose purpose is to develop
affordable open source 3D printed bionic solutions for individuals with disabilities, increase
accessibility with art infused bionics, and to promote access and engagement in STEM/STEAM
education. Financial activities of this component unit are not included in the University’s financial
statements as the total assets related to this component unit represent less than one percent of
the total aggregate component units’ assets.

An annual audit of each organization’s financial statements is conducted by independent certified public
accountants. The annual reports are submitted to the Auditor General and the University Board of
Trustees. Additional information on the University’s discretely presented component units, including
copies of audit reports, is available by contacting the University Controller. Condensed financial
statements for the University’s discretely presented component units are shown in a subsequent note.

Basis of Presentation. The University’s accounting policies conform with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to public colleges and universities as
prescribed by GASB. The National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO)
also provides the University with recommendations prescribed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated by GASB and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).
GASB allows public universities various reporting options. The University has elected to report as an
entity engaged in only business-type activities. This election requires the adoption of the accrual basis
of accounting and entitywide reporting including the following components:

¢ Management’s Discussion and Analysis
¢ Basic Financial Statements:

o Statement of Net Position

o Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
o0 Statement of Cash Flows
o]

Notes to Financial Statements
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e Other Required Supplementary Information

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues,
expenses, and related assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources, are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Specifically, it relates
to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The University’s
financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from nonexchange activities
are generally recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are
met. The University follows GASB standards of accounting and financial reporting.

The University’s discretely presented component units use the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, and follow GASB standards of accounting and financial reporting.

Significant interdepartmental sales between auxiliary service departments and other institutional
departments have been accounted for as reductions of expenses and not revenues of those departments.

The University’s principal operating activities consist of instruction, research, and public service.
Operating revenues and expenses generally include all fiscal transactions directly related to these
activities as well as administration, operation and maintenance of capital assets, and depreciation of
capital assets. Nonoperating revenues include State noncapital appropriations, Federal and State
student financial aid, and investment income (net of unrealized gains or losses on investments). Interest
on capital asset-related debt is a nonoperating expense. Other revenues generally include revenues for
capital construction projects.

The statement of net position is presented in a classified format to distinguish between current and
noncurrent assets and liabilities. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available to fund
certain programs, it is the University’s policy to first apply the restricted resources to such programs,
followed by the use of the unrestricted resources.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is presented by major sources and is
reported net of tuition scholarship allowances. Tuition scholarship allowances are the difference between
the stated charge for goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is actually paid
by the student or the third party making payment on behalf of the student. The University applied the
“Alternate Method” as prescribed in NACUBO Advisory Report 2000-05 to determine the reported net
tuition scholarship allowances. Under this method, the University computes these amounts by allocating
the cash payments to students, excluding payments for services, using a ratio of total aid to aid not
considered third-party aid.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method in compliance with GASB Statement
No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

Report No. 2019-168
Page 24 March 2019

168



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash in demand
accounts, money market funds, and investments with original maturities of 3 months or less. University
cash deposits are held in banks qualified as public depositories under Florida law. All such deposits are
insured by Federal depository insurance, up to specified limits, or collateralized with securities held in
Florida’s multiple financial institution collateral pool required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The
University also holds $11,956,951 in money market funds and short-term investments. The money
market funds and investments are permissible under the current investment policy; the primary portion
of these investments are held in Rule 2a-7 mutual funds and securities rated AAA (or its equivalent) by
a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Corporation, a blended component unit, holds
$3,259,264 in money market funds. The money market funds are uninsured, but collateralized by
securities held by the financial institutions, not in the name of the Corporation. Cash and cash equivalents
that are externally restricted to make debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to
purchase or construct capital or other restricted assets, are classified as restricted.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Discretely Presented Component Units. Cash and cash equivalents
for the University’s discretely presented component units are reported as follows:

Money Market
Component Unit Cash in Bank Funds Total

University of Central Florida

Foundation, Inc. $ 15142906 $ 1,510,127 $ 16,653,033
University of Central Florida

Research Foundation, Inc. 372,116 - 372,116
UCF Athletics Association, Inc. 469,491 - 469,491
UCF Conwocation Corporation 598,134 15,285,558 15,883,692
UCF Stadium Corporation - 603,251 603,251
Central Florida Clinical

Practice Organization, Inc. 6,565,885 - 6,565,885
Total Component Units $ 23,148,532 $ 17,398,936 $ 40,547,468

The University holds certain cash balances for various discretely presented component units. Cash
amounts held for University of Central Florida Research Foundation, Inc., UCF Convocation Corporation,
and UCF Stadium Corporation were $11,180,760, $4,563,495, and $2,125,986, respectively.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a
depository financial institution, the component unit will not be able to recover deposits.

¢ University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc. — Cash deposits consist of non-interest-bearing
demand deposits, money market accounts, and cash deposits. At June 30, 2018, approximately
$15,601,453 in cash deposits were not insured by Federal deposit insurance and were not
collateralized.

¢ UCF Athletics Association, Inc. — The Association does not have a deposit policy for custodial
credit risk, although all demand deposits with banks are insured up to the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits. As of June 30, 2018, $133,483 of the Association’s bank
balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
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e UCF Convocation Corporation — At June 30, 2018, the Convocation Corporation held
$15,285,558 in a government money market fund. Money market funds are uninsured and
collateralized by securities held by the institution, not in the Corporation’s name.

¢ UCF Stadium Corporation — At June 30, 2018, the Stadium Corporation held $603,251 in a
government money market fund. Money market funds are uninsured and collateralized by
securities held by the institution, not in the Corporation’s name.

¢ Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization, Inc. — At June 30, 2018, the Central Florida
Clinical Practice Organization, Inc. had deposits in banking institutions. A portion of the deposits,
totaling $6,352,327, were in excess of the Federal deposit insurance limit as of June 30, 2018.

Capital Assets. University capital assets consist of land, construction in progress, buildings,
infrastructure and other improvements, furniture and equipment, library resources, leasehold
improvements, works of art and historical treasures, and computer software and other capital assets.
These assets are capitalized and recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or at acquisition value at the
date received in the case of gifts and purchases of State surplus property. Additions, improvements, and
other outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. The University has a capitalization threshold of
$4 million for intangible assets, which includes computer software, $5,000 for tangible personal property,
and $250 for library resources. New buildings and improvements have a $100,000 capitalization
threshold. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

e Buildings — 20 to 50 years

* |Infrastructure and Other Improvements — 12 to 50 years
e Furniture and Equipment — 5 to 10 years

e Library Resources — 10 years

e | easehold Improvements — the lessor of the remaining lease term, or the estimated useful life of
the improvement

e Works of Art and Historical Treasures — 5 to 15 years

e Computer Software — 5 to 10 years

Noncurrent Liabilities. Noncurrent liabilities include capital improvement debt payable, loans and notes
payable, compensated absences payable, other postemployment benefits payable, net pension liabilities,
and other noncurrent liabilities that are not scheduled to be paid within the next fiscal year. Capital
improvement debt is reported net of unamortized premium or discount. The University amortizes debt
premiums and discounts over the life of the debt using the straight-line method.

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net positions of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance
Subsidy (HIS) defined benefit plan and additions to/deductions from the FRS and HIS fiduciary net
positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and the HIS plans.
Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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2. Reporting Change

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75. The University implemented
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, which replaces GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended. This statement addresses accounting
and financial reporting for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) provided to employees
of state and local government employers; establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses; requires governments to
report a liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses on the face
of the financial statement for the OPEB they provide; and requires more extensive note disclosures and
supplementary information about a government’s OPEB liability.

3. Adjustments to Beginning Net Position

The beginning net position of the University was decreased by $220,453,000 due to implementation of
GASB Statement No. 75. The University’s total OPEB liability reported at June 30, 2017, increased by
$223,504,000 to $322,228,000 and the beginning balance for deferred outflows of resources was
established at $3,051,000 as of July 1, 2017, due to the transition in the valuation methods under
GASB Statement No. 45 to GASB Statement No. 75.

The beginning net position of the discretely presented UCF Convocation Corporation and UCF Stadium
Corporation were increased by $4,304,506 and $648,425, respectively, due to the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. Each component unit removed the impact
of previous write-offs of unamortized prepaid bond insurance costs associated with debt refundings and
recalculated each deferred loss on refunding amount.

4. Deficit Net Position in Individual Funds

The University reported an unrestricted net position which included a deficit in the current
funds — unrestricted as shown below:

Fund Net Position

Current Funds - Unrestricted $ (155,532,914)
Auxiliary Funds 124,192,956
Total $  (31,339,958)

As shown in the following schedule, this deficit can be attributed primarily to the full recognition of certain
long-term liabilities (i.e., compensated absences payable, OPEB payable, and net pension liabilities) in
the current unrestricted funds that are expected to be paid over time:
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Amount
Total Unrestricted Net Position Before Recognition of Certain Long-Term
Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 473,976,513
Amount Expected to be Paid in Future Years:
Compensated Absences Payable 57,343,725
Other Post Employment Benefits Payable and Related Deferred Outflows
and Deferred Inflows of Resources 335,448,000
Net Pension Liability and Related Deferred Outflows and Deferred
Inflows of Resources 112,524,746
Total Amount Expected to be Paid in Future Years 505,316,471
Total Unrestricted Net Position $ (31,339,958)

5. Investments

Section 1011.42(5), Florida Statutes, authorizes universities to invest funds with the State Treasury and
State Board of Administration (SBA) and requires that universities comply with the statutory requirements
governing investment of public funds by local governments. Accordingly, universities are subject to the
requirements of Chapter 218, Part IV, Florida Statutes. The Board of Trustees has adopted a written
investment policy providing that surplus funds of the University shall be invested in those institutions and
instruments permitted under the provisions of Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 218.415(16),
Florida Statutes, the University is authorized to invest in the Florida PRIME investment pool administered
by the SBA; Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency; interest-bearing time deposits and savings
accounts in qualified public depositories, as defined in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes; direct obligations
of the United States Treasury; obligations of Federal agencies and instrumentalities; securities of, or
interests in, certain open end or closed end management type investment companies; and other
investments approved by the Board of Trustees as authorized by law. Investments set aside to make
debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to purchase or construct capital assets are
classified as restricted.

The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets,
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.

All of the University’s recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018, are valued using quoted
market prices (Level 1 inputs), with the exception of corporate, municipal and other bonds, certain Federal
agency obligations and certificates of deposit which are valued using matrix pricing models which may
consider quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets in markets that are not active, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
(Level 2 inputs) and investments with the State Treasury which are valued based on the University’s
share of the pool (Level 3 inputs).

The University’s investments at June 30, 2018, are reported as follows:
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Investments by fair value level

External Investment Pool:

State Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account
SBA Debt Senice Accounts
Certificates of Deposit
United States Government

and Federally-Guaranteed Obligations
Federal Agency Obligations
Bonds and Notes
Mutual Funds

Equities

Bonds

Total investments by fair value level

Investments held by the University’s component units at June 30, 2018, are reported as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 297,957,515 $ - 8 - $ 297,957,515
1,323,706 1,323,706 - -
1,461,927 - 1,461,927 -
38,823,044 38,823,044 - -
27,317,998 461,493 26,856,505 -
96,177,016 - 96,177,016 -
92,898,939 92,898,939 - -
12,739,822 12,739,822 - -

$ 568,699,967

$ 146,247,004 $

124,495,448

$ 297,957,515

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices Significant
University of in Active Other Significant
University of Central Florida Markets for Observable Unobservable
Central Florida Research Identical Assets Inputs

Investments by fair value level Foundation, Inc. Foundation, Inc. Total (Level 1) (Level 2)
Equity - Domestic $ 5,220,769 $ 399,220 $ 5,619,989 §$ 5,651,591 § 68,398 $ -
Equity - International 27,405,051 - 27,405,051 27,405,051 - -
Domestic - Fixed Income 36,824,207 36,824,207 36,824,207 - -
Global All Assets 14,575,447 14,575,447 14,575,447 - -
Real Assets 4,073,225 4,073,225 473,225 - 3,600,000
Total investments by fair value level 88,098,699 399,220 88,497,919 § 84,829,521 § 68,398 § 3,600,000
Investments measured at the

net asset value (NAV)
Equity - Domestic 7,425,643 7,425,643
Equity - International 45,655,944 45,655,944
Domestic - Fixed Income 4,377,176 4,377,176
International Fixed Income 21,325,906 21,325,906
Global All Assets 8,549,709 8,549,709
Private Equity Funds 7,208,893 7,208,893
Private Debt Funds 1,662,464 1,662,464
Hedge Funds:

Credit 7,686,794 7,686,794

Event Driven 6,563,227 6,563,227

Global Macro 5,185,778 5,185,778

Long Short 2,230,741 2,230,741

Long Short Credit 2,211,562 2,211,562

Equity Linked 4,116,965 4,116,965
Real Assets 294,250 294,250
Total investments measured at the NAV 124,495,052 124,495,052
Total investments $ 212,593,751 § 399,220 $ 212,992,971

All of the University’s component units’ recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018, are valued
using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs), with the exception of equity investments valued quarterly by
respective fund managers (Level 2 inputs) and real assets valued based on an appraisal utilizing recent

sale and property comparisons of like assets (Level 3 inputs).
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For the University’s component units, the valuation method for investments measured at the net asset
value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) is presented in the following table:

University of Redemption Redemption

Investments measured at the Central Florida Unfunded Frequency (if Notice
net asset value (NAV) Foundation, Inc. Commitments Currently Eligible) Period

Equity - Domestic $ 7,425,643 $ - Immediate

Equity - International 45,655,944 - Immediate

Domestic - Fixed Income 4,377,176 - Immediate

International Fixed Income 21,325,906 - Monthly/Immediate 30 Days

Global All Assets 8,549,709 - Immediate

Private Equity Funds 7,208,893 10,626,424

Private Debt Funds 1,662,464 4,062,135

Hedge Funds:
Credit 7,686,794 - Monthly/Quarterly 30-90 Days
Event Driven 6,563,227 - Quarterly 60-90 Days
Global Macro 5,185,778 - Monthly/Quarterly 30-62 Days
Long Short 2,230,741 - Monthly 30 Days
Long Short Credit 2,211,562 - Monthly 30 Days
Equity Linked 4,116,965 - Monthly/Quarterly 30-60 Days

Real Assets 294,250 2,775,706

Total investments measured atthe NAV  $ 124,495,052 $ 17,464,265

Net Asset Value.

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, permits the fair value of certain equity
and debt investments that do not have readily determinable fair values to be based on their net asset
value (NAV) per share. The investments held at net asset value reflect:

Domestic Equity and International Equity: These funds are operated by money managers and can be
actively managed or passively managed to an index. These funds are privately placed and the fair value
cannot be observed through observable inputs through an exchange for the overall fund. The fair values
of both funds are provided by the money managers which use a quoted price in active markets for the
underlying assets.

Domestic Fixed Income: The fund is operated by a money manager and is passively managed to an
index. The fund is privately placed, and its fair value cannot be observed through observable inputs
through an exchange for the overall fund. The fair value of the fund is provided by the money manager
which uses a quoted price in the active markets for the underlying assets.

International Fixed Income: Two of the funds invest in fixed income bonds ranging in credit ratings
focused on domestic and international investments. One fund utilizes a focus on credit driven strategies
for the underlying investments and can contain both domestic and international investments in the
portfolio. These funds are privately placed and the fair value cannot be observed through observable
inputs through an exchange for the overall fund. The fair values of the three funds are provided by the
money managers which use a quoted price in active markets for the underlying assets.

Global All Assets: The fund invests in a global strategy including domestic, international, and global
companies and is privately placed, and the fair value cannot be observed through observable inputs
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through an exchange for the overall fund. The fair value of this fund is provided by the money manager
which uses a quoted price in active markets for the underlying assets.

Private Equity and Private Debt Funds: Private equity and private debt includes distinct limited
partnerships or limited liability companies. The investments can never be redeemed with these funds.
Instead, the nature of the investments in this type is that distributions are received through the liquidation
of the underlying assets or notes of the fund. Private equity and private debt are not traded on a public,
primary exchange. Private equity can include equity rights to private companies, capital lent to
companies, or other privately held securities. Private equity commitments are not drawn immediately,
therefore the capital deployed at any one time is likely less than the total contractual commitment. Private
debt funds aim to take advantage of structural imbalances between demand and supply of credit for
consumers, small and medium enterprises, and trade finance consisting of private notes and bonds with
equity components. In this portfolio, private equity capital and private debt are invested with general
partners of a legally formed limited partnership, whereby several investors pool their capital as limited
partners. The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using recent observable
transaction information for similar investments and nonbinding bids received from potential buyers of the
investments.

Credit and Long/Short Credit Hedge Funds: The credit linked class of hedge funds seeks to profit from
the mispricing of related debt securities. Returns are not generally dependent on the general direction
of market movements. This strategy utilizes quantitative and qualitative analysis to identify securities or
spreads between securities that deviate from their fair value and/or historical norms. The fair values of
the investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments.

Event Driven Hedge Funds: The event driven hedge funds class includes investments in hedge funds
that invest across the capital structure in equity and debt securities. Managers invest in situations with
the expectation that a near term event will act as a catalyst changing the market's perception of a
company, thereby increasing or decreasing the value of its equity or debt. The fair values of the
investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments.

Global Macro Hedge Funds: The global macro hedge fund class includes hedge funds that trade highly
liquid instruments, long and short, including currencies, commodities, fixed income instruments and
equity indices. Two types of strategies are employed in this portfolio: discretionary strategies that employ
broad analysis of economic, financial and political data to identify themes, and systematic strategies that
use algorithmic models to analyze historical data, both technical and fundamental. The fair values of the
investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments.

Long/Short Hedge Funds: The equity long/short hedge fund class includes investments in hedge funds
that invest both long and short stocks and equity indices. Management of the hedge funds has the ability
to shift investments across a variety of stocks, equity indices, and to a lesser extent other securities from
a net long position to a net short position. In this portfolio, the managers are focused primarily on the
United States, Europe, and Asia. The fair values of the investments in this class have been estimated
using the net asset value per share of the investments.

Equity Linked Hedge Funds: The equity linked class of hedge funds includes investments in debt
instruments and options on equities. The equities options provide investors with principle protection while
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providing exposure to equities. Returns are dependent on performance of the equities options. The fair
values of the investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the
investments.

Real Assets: Real assets include one investment vehicle consisting of a distinct limited liability company.
The investments can never be redeemed with these funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in this
type is that distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying assets or notes of the fund.
Real assets consist of capital not traded on a public, primary exchange. For purposes of this portfolio,
real assets include private holdings in domestic and international real estate. Real asset commitments
are not drawn immediately, therefore the capital deployed at any one time is likely less than the total
contractual commitment. In this portfolio, real assets capital is invested with general partners of a legally
formed limited partnership, whereby several investors pool their capital as limited partners. The fair
values of the investments in this type have been determined using recent observable transaction
information for similar investments and nonbinding bids received from potential buyers of the
investments.

External Investment Pools.

The University reported investments at fair value totaling $297,957,515 at June 30, 2018, in the
State Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) investment pool, representing ownership of
a share of the pool, not the underlying securities. Pooled investments with the State Treasury are not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Oversight of the pooled investments with the
State Treasury is provided by the Treasury Investment Committee per Section 17.575, Florida Statutes.
The authorized investment types are set forth in Section 17.57, Florida Statutes. The State Treasury
SPIA investment pool carried a credit rating of A+f by Standard & Poor’s, had an effective duration of
3 years, and fair value factor of 0.9872 at June 30, 2018. Participants contribute to the State Treasury
SPIA investment pool on a dollar basis. These funds are commingled and a fair value of the pool is
determined from the individual values of the securities. The fair value of the securities is summed and a
total pool fair value is determined. A fair value factor is calculated by dividing the pool’s total fair value
by the pool participant’s total cash balances. The fair value factor is the ratio used to determine the fair
value of an individual participant’s pool balance. The University relies on policies developed by the State
Treasury for managing interest rate risk or credit risk for this investment pool. Disclosures for the State
Treasury investment pool are included in the notes to financial statements of the State’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

State Board of Administration Debt Service Accounts.

The University reported investments totaling $1,323,706 at June 30, 2018, in the SBA Debt Service
Accounts. These investments are used to make debt service payments on bonds issued by the State
Board of Education for the benefit of the University. The University’s investments consist of United States
Treasury securities, with maturity dates of 6 months or less, and are reported at fair value. The University
relies on policies developed by the SBA for managing interest rate risk and credit risk for these accounts.
Disclosures for the Debt Service Accounts are included in the notes to financial statements of the State’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Other Investments.

The University and its discretely presented component units invested in various debt and equity
securities, mutual funds, and certificates of deposit. The following risks apply to the University’s and its
discretely presented component units’ investments other than external investment pools.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Pursuant to Section 218.415(16), Florida Statutes, the University’s investments
in securities must provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they come due. Investments of the
University and its component units in debt securities, bond mutual funds, and debt related hedge funds,
and their future maturities at June 30, 2018, are as follows:

University Debt Investments Maturities

Investments Maturities (In Years)
Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 Than 5

United States Government and
Federally-Guaranteed Obligations $ 38,823,044 $ 8,132,949 $ 29,754,027 $ 936,068

Federal Agency Obligations 27,317,998 161,358 11,598,556 15,558,084
Bonds and Notes 96,177,016 10,314,503 67,677,669 18,184,844
Mutual Funds - Bonds 12,739,822 512,849 5,625,716 6,601,257
Total $ 175,057,880 $ 19,121,659 §$ 114,655,968 $ 41,280,253

Component Units' Debt Investments Maturities

Investments Maturities (In Years)
Investments Not
Directly Subject

Fair Less More To Interest Rate
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 Than 5 Risk (1)
Domestic Fixed Income $ 41,201,383 $ - $31,707,453 $ 5,116,754 $ 4,377,176
International Fixed Income 21,325,906 - - - 21,325,906
Global All Assets 23,125,156 - - - 23,125,156
Private Debt 1,662,464 - - - 1,662,464
Hedge Funds 27,995,067 - - - 27,995,067
Total $115,309,976 $ - $31,707,453 $ 5,116,754 $ 78,485,769

(1) Certain UCF Foundation alternative investments are held in funds and are not directly subject to credit risk. Alternative
investments consist of funds that may include underlying securities including equities, fixed income, real estate, and other
types of investments. The investments listed above with quality ratings reflect the credit risk related to debt-type securities
that are directly held by the Foundation.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Obligations of the United States government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the
United States government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit
quality. The University’s investment policy limits fixed income exposure to investment grade assets and
provides credit quality guidelines applicable to the investment objective. The University’s component
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units’ investment policies provide information on asset classes, target allocations, and ranges of
acceptable investment categories. The following schedule represents the ratings at June 30, 2018, of
the University’s and its component units’ debt instruments using Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s
nationally recognized rating agencies:

University Debt Investments Quality Ratings

Fair
Investment Type Value AAA AA A Less Than A
Federal Agency Obligations $ 27,317,998 $ 27,317,998 $ - $ - % -
Bonds and Notes 96,177,016 33,327,844 17,612,842 43,203,950 2,032,380
Mutual Funds - Bonds 12,739,822 - 2,193,322 10,546,500 -
Total $ 136,234,836 $ 60,645,842 $ 19,806,164 $ 53,750,450 $ 2,032,380

Component Units’ Debt Investments Quality Ratings

Investments

Not Directly

Fair Subject To
Investment Type Value AAA AA A Less Than A Credit Risk (1)
Domestic Fixed Income $ 41,201,383 $ 4,936,250 $22,706,796 $ 4,312,601 $ 4,868,560 $ 4,377,176
International Fixed Income 21,325,906 - - - - 21,325,906
Global All Assets 23,125,156 - - - - 23,125,156
Private Debt 1,662,464 - - - - 1,662,464
Hedge Funds 27,995,067 - - - - 27,995,067
Total $115,309,976 $ 4,936,250 $22,706,796 $ 4,312,601 $ 4,868,560 $ 78,485,769

(1) Certain UCF Foundation alternative investments are held in funds and are not directly subject to credit risk. Alternative
investments consist of funds that may include underlying securities including equities, fixed income, real estate, and other
types of investments. The investments listed above with quality ratings reflect the credit risk related to debt-type securities
that are directly held by the Foundation.

Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
the University’s or its component units’ investments in a single issuer. The University’s and its component
units’ investment policies require diversification sufficient to reduce the potential of a single security,
single sector of securities, or single style of management having a disproportionate or significant impact
on the portfolio. The University’s investment policy states that not more than five percent of the
investment portfolio’s assets shall be invested in securities on any one issuing company, and no single
corporate bond issuer shall exceed five percent of the portfolio. Guidelines for individual sectors of the
portfolio further indicate percentage limitations.

6. Receivables

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable represent amounts for student tuition and fees, contract
and grant reimbursements due from third parties, various sales and services provided to students and
third parties, and interest accrued on investments and loans receivable. As of June 30, 2018, the
University reported the following amounts as accounts receivable:
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Description Amount

Student Tuition and Fees $ 30,720,327
Contracts and Grants 25,843,270
Other 7,109,652
Total Accounts Receivable $ 63,673,249

Loans and Notes Receivable. Loans and notes receivable represent all amounts owed on promissory
notes from debtors, including student loans made under the Federal Perkins Loan Program and other
loan programs.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables. Allowances for doubtful accounts, and loans and notes
receivable, are reported based on management’s best estimate as of fiscal year end considering type,
age, collection history, and other factors considered appropriate. Accounts receivable and loans and
notes receivable are reported net of allowances of $2,243,573 and $813,915, respectively, at
June 30, 2018.

7. Due From State

The amount due from State consists of $54,725,914 of Public Education Capital Outlay, Capital
Improvement Fee Trust Fund, or other allocations due from the State to the University for construction or
purchase of University facilities.

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, is shown in the following table:
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Beginning Ending

Description Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:

Land $ 36,158,790 $ 6,582,763 $ - $ 42,741,553

Works of Art and Historical Treasures 218,000 - - 218,000

Construction in Progress 81,060,507 114,462,132 105,462,196 90,060,443
Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets $ 117,437,297 $ 121,044,895 $ 105,462,196 $ 133,019,996
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Buildings $1,280,736,374 $ 105,242,054 $ - $1,385,978,428

Infrastructure and Other Improvements 61,398,415 7,946,159 - 69,344,574

Furniture and Equipment 219,142,437 16,873,663 6,258,974 229,757,126

Library Resources 133,044,526 6,736,286 - 139,780,812

Leasehold Improvements 13,635,574 2,408,381 - 16,043,955

Works of Art and Historical Treasures 1,677,354 - - 1,677,354

Computer Software and

Other Capital Assets 7,850,435 - - 7,850,435

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 1,717,485,115 139,206,543 6,258,974 1,850,432,684
Less, Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings 442,487,657 41,118,116 - 483,605,773

Infrastructure and Other Improvements 29,404,555 2,582,530 - 31,987,085

Furniture and Equipment 178,660,353 16,341,903 6,154,567 188,847,689

Library Resources 108,888,933 4,809,859 - 113,698,792

Leasehold Improvements 7,547,874 1,333,028 - 8,880,902

Works of Art and Historical Treasures 1,173,751 74,516 - 1,248,267

Computer Software and

Other Capital Assets 7,850,435 - - 7,850,435

Total Accumulated Depreciation 776,013,558 66,259,952 6,154,567 836,118,943

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net $ 941,471,557 $ 72,946,591 $ 104,407  $1,014,313,741

9. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue at June 30, 2018, includes grant and contract prepayments, auxiliary prepayments,
and student tuition and fees received prior to fiscal year-end related to subsequent accounting periods.
As of June 30, 2018, the University reported the following amounts as unearned revenue:

Description Amount

Auxiliary Prepayments $ 9,377,959
Grant and Contracts 5,593,659
Student Tuition and Fees 887,015
Total Unearned Revenue $ 15,858,633

10.Deferred Outflow / Inflow of Resources

The deferred outflows and inflows related to pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions as
calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
Total deferred outflows of resources related to pensions were $130,985,600 and deferred inflows of
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resources related to pensions were $10,367,486 for the year ended June 30, 2018. Note 12. includes a
complete discussion of defined benefit pension plans.

The deferred outflows and inflows related to Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) are an aggregate
of items related to OPEB as calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for certain postemployment
healthcare benefits administered by the State Group Health Insurance Program. Total deferred outflows
of resources related to OPEB were $7,544,000 and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB were
$42,480,000 for the year ended June 30, 2018. Note 11. includes a complete discussion of Other
Postemployment Benefits.

The total deferred outflows of resources related to the deferred loss on debt refunding’s were
$12,936,932 for the year ended June 30, 2018. The deferred loss was created as a result of the UCF
Finance Corporation debt refinancing, which terminated the UCF Finance Corporation’s interest rate
swap liability at a cost of $13,447,600. The deferred loss will be amortized as a component of interest
expense over the remaining life of the UCF Finance Corporation’s debt refinancing.

11.Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities of the University at June 30, 2018, include capital improvement debt payable, loans
and notes payable, compensated absences payable, other postemployment benefits payable, net
pension liability, and other noncurrent liabilities. Long-term liabilities activity for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, is shown in the following table:

Beginning Ending Current
Description Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

Capital Improvement Debt Payable $ 125,664,116 $ 28,045,000 $ 36,466,906 $ 117,242,210 $ 8,270,000

Bonds Payable 51,315,000 - 51,315,000 - -
Loans and Notes Payable - 63,420,513 61,513 63,359,000 2,498,000
Compensated Absences Payable 54,725,455 6,806,246 4,187,976 57,343,725 4,014,061
Other Postemployment

Benefits Payable (1) 322,228,000 23,815,000 45,531,000 300,512,000 3,446,000
Net Pension Liability 199,603,453 152,562,429 119,023,022 233,142,860 1,592,767
Interest Rate Swap 12,550,585 781,216 13,331,801 - -
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 7,464,053 1,740,792 921,402 8,283,443 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 773,550,662 $277,171,196 $ 270,838,620 $ 779,883,238 $ 19,820,828

(1) OPEB Payable beginning balance adjusted for adoption of GASB Statement No. 75, as described in Note 3.

Capital Improvement Debt Payable. The University had the following capital improvement debt payable
outstanding at June 30, 2018:

Report No. 2019-168
March 2019 Page 37

181



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Amount Amount Interest Maturity
Capital Improvement Debt of Original Outstanding Rates Date
Type and Series Debt (1) (Percent) To
Student Housing Debt:
2002 - Housing $ 14,055,000 $ 1,140,000 4.25 2019
2007A - Housing 38,780,000 1,830,000 5.25 2019
2012A - Housing 66,640,000 60,411,476 3to5 2042
2018A - Housing 23,255,000 25,844,412 4to5 2030
Total Student Housing Debt 142,730,000 89,225,888
Student Health Center Debt:
2004A 8,000,000 3,150,000 45t05 2024
Parking Garage Debt:
2010B - Parking Garage VI 11,140,000 9,720,000 4.9t06.2 2029
2011A - Parking Garage 11,005,000 3,398,088 3to5 2022
2012A - Parking Garage 7,860,000 6,533,585 3tob 2032
2018A - Parking Garage 4,790,000 5,214,649 5 2024
Total Parking Garage Debt 34,795,000 24,866,322

Total Capital Improvement Debt

$ 185,525,000 § 117,242,210

(1) Amount outstanding includes unamortized discounts and premiums.

The University extinguished long-term capital improvement debt obligations by the issuance of new
long-term capital improvement debt instruments as follows:

On March 15, 2018, the Florida Board of Governors issued $23,255,000 of University of Central
Florida Dormitory Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2018A, with a net premium of $3,179,007,
and interest rates ranging from 4 to 5 percent. The University’s portion of the refunding bonds,
$26,434,007, was used to partially defease $2,435,000 of the outstanding Capital Improvement
Dormitory Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 and 23,630,000 of the outstanding Capital Improvement
Dormitory Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A. Securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. The trust
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the University’s statement of
net position. As a result of the refunding, the University reduced its capital improvement debt
service requirement by $3,977,202 over the next 12 years and obtained an economic gain of
$3,439,521. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the defeased debt was $25,844,412.

On June 21, 2018, the Florida Board of Governors issued $4,790,000 of University of Central
Florida Parking Facility Revenue Refunding Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2018A, with a
net premium of $476,498, and an interest rate of 5 percent. The University’s portion of the
refunding bonds, $5,266,498, was used to defease $5,220,000 of the outstanding Capital
Improvement Parking Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A. Securities were placed in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the
defeased bonds. The trust assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
University’s statement of net position. As a result of the refunding, the University reduced its
capital improvement debt service requirement by $323,112 over the next 6 years and obtained
an economic gain of $295,881. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the defeased debt
was $5,214,649.
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The University has pledged a portion of future housing rental revenues, parking revenues, and health
service facility fees based on credit hours to repay $185,525,000 in capital improvement revenue bonds
issued by the Florida Board of Governors on behalf of the University. Proceeds from the bonds provided
financing to construct student housing, student health facilities, and student parking garages. The bonds
are payable solely from housing rental revenues, parking and transportation fees, and student health
fees and are payable through 2042. The University has committed to appropriate each year amounts
sufficient to cover the principal and interest requirements on the debt. Total principal and interest
remaining on the debt is $152,905,301, and principal and interest paid for the current year totaled
$13,950,116 excluding refunding defeasances. During the 2017-18 fiscal year, operating revenues
generated from housing rentals, parking revenues, and student health fees totaled $29,920,988,
$22,116,646, and $17,518,614, respectively.

Annual requirements to amortize all capital improvement debt outstanding as of June 30, 2018, are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 8,270,000 $ 4,825193 $ 13,095,193
2020 8,410,000 4,446,040 12,856,040
2021 8,225,000 4,034,658 12,259,658
2022 7,385,000 3,652,328 11,037,328
2023 7,195,000 3,286,563 10,481,563
2024-2028 33,195,000 11,578,154 44,773,154
2029-2033 19,390,000 5,608,804 24,998,804
2034-2038 9,885,000 3,118,969 13,003,969
2039-2042 9,565,000 834,592 10,399,592
Subtotal 111,520,000 41,385,301 152,905,301
Net Discounts and

Premiums 5,722,210 - 5,722,210
Total $ 117,242,210  $ 41,385,301  $ 158,627,511

Loans and Notes Payable. During the 2007 fiscal year, one of the University’s blended component
units, the UCF Finance Corporation (Corporation), issued $60 million in bonds to finance the construction
of the Burnett Biomedical Sciences Building, part of the University’s medical school. The Corporation
entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection with the bond issuance as a means to lower
its borrowing costs when compared with fixed-rate bonds at the time of their issuance.

In September 2017, the Corporation entered into a $63,359,000 Refunding Term Loan, Series 2017, with
a bank. The loan will mature on July 1, 2037, and bear interest at a fixed rate of 2.4 percent per annum
with a 15-year interest put option. The loan is secured by the University’s indirect cost revenues received
by the University from Federal, State, and private grants. Proceeds of $63,359,000 from the term loan,
plus an additional $918,460 contributed from the Corporation were used to purchase $50,627,660 in U.S.
Treasury State and Local Government Securities, to pay $13,447,600 to terminate the interest rate swap
liability, and to fund $202,200 of cost issuance expenses. The payment of the swap is included in Interest
Paid on Capital Debt and Leases in the Statement of Cash Flows. The U.S. Treasury State and Local
Government Securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future
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debt service payments on the Series 2007 bonds, which defeased the bonds. The trust assets and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the statement of net position. The trust extinguished
the defeased bonds on October 20, 2017. As a result of the refinancing, the Finance Corporation reduced
its debt service requirement by $5,804,859 over the next 20 years and obtained an economic gain of
$4,315,688.

The University agreed to use a ground sublease to lease to its blended component unit, the Corporation,
a parcel of property located in Orange County, Florida, where approximately 198,000 square feet of
classroom, laboratory, and administrative office space, together with related infrastructure was
constructed. The facilities are used solely for education and research purposes and are operated and
managed by the University. The University and the Corporation entered into an agreement whereby the
Corporation leases the facilities to the University for the occupancy of the facilities. The University has
agreed to pay a base rent equal to all amounts due and payable under the term loan.

Annual requirements to amortize the outstanding term loan as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 2,498,000 $ 1,490,640 $ 3,988,640
2020 2,559,000 1,429,956 3,988,956
2021 2,621,000 1,367,796 3,988,796
2022 2,684,000 1,304,136 3,988,136
2023 2,750,000 1,238,928 3,988,928
2024-2028 14,783,000 5,159,700 19,942,700
2029-2033 16,670,000 3,274,680 19,944,680
2034-2037 18,794,000 1,149,264 19,943,264
Total $ 63,359,000 $ 16,415,100 $ 79,774,100

On March 8, 2018, the Corporation entered into a note with a bank for up to $20,000,000 to secure the
construction commitments for a new University Downtown campus education facility. The note bears a
variable rate of interest equal to a per annum rate of 81 percent multiplied by the sum of the LIBOR plus
0.50 percent and is subject to adjustment to reflect changes in the LIBOR rate. The rate on
June 30, 2018, was 2.74 percent. The balance of the note was $0 as of June 30, 2018. Payments will
be made on an annual basis on March 8 of each year beginning March 8, 2019.

Compensated Absences Payable. Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for
annual leave (vacation) and sick leave earned pursuant to Board of Governors’ Regulations, University
regulations, and bargaining agreements. Leave earned is accrued to the credit of the employee and
records are kept on each employee’s unpaid (unused) leave balance. The University reports a liability
for the accrued leave; however, State noncapital appropriations fund only the portion of accrued leave
that is used or paid in the current fiscal year. Although the University expects the liability to be funded
primarily from future appropriations, generally accepted accounting principles do not permit the recording
of a receivable in anticipation of future appropriations. At June 30, 2018, the estimated liability for
compensated absences, which includes the University’s share of the Florida Retirement System and
FICA contributions, totaled $57,343,725. The current portion of the compensated absences liability,
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$4,014,061, is the amount expected to be paid in the coming fiscal year and is based on actual payouts
over the last 3 years calculated as a percentage of those years’ total compensated absences liability.

Other Postemployment Benefits Payable. The University follows GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for certain postemployment
healthcare benefits administered by the State Group Health Insurance Program.

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description. The Division of State Group Insurance’s Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
(OPEB Plan) is a multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida. Pursuant
to the provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, all employees who retire from the University are
eligible to participate in the State Group Health Insurance Program. Retirees and their eligible
dependents shall be offered the same health and hospitalization insurance coverage as is offered to
active employees at a premium cost of no more than the premium cost applicable to active employees.
A retiree means any officer or employee who retires under a State retirement system or State optional
annuity or retirement program or is placed on disability retirement and who begins receiving retirement
benefits immediately after retirement from employment. In addition, any officer or employee who retires
under the Florida Retirement System Investment Plan is considered a “retiree” if he or she meets the age
and service requirements to qualify for normal retirement or has attained the age of 59.5 years and has
the years of service required for vesting. The University subsidizes the premium rates paid by retirees
by allowing them to participate in the OPEB Plan at reduced or blended group (implicitly subsidized)
premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees
because retiree healthcare costs are generally greater than active employee healthcare costs. No assets
are accumulated in a trust that meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. The
OPEB Plan contribution requirements and benefit terms necessary for funding the OPEB Plan each year
is on a pay-as-you-go basis as established by the Governor's recommended budget and the General
Appropriations Act. Retirees are required to enroll in the Federal Medicare (Medicare) program for their
primary coverage as soon as they are eligible.

Benefits Provided. The OPEB Plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees and their dependents. The
OPEB Plan only provides an implicit subsidy as described above.

Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability

The University’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability of $300,512,000 was measured as of
June 30, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017. At June 30, 2018, the
University’s proportionate share, determined by its proportion of total benefit payments made, was
2.78 percent, which was an increase of 0.05 from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2017.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:
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Inflation 2.60 percent
Payroll Growth 3.25 percent
Discount rate 3.58 percent
Healthcare cost trend rates
PPO Plan 7.8 percent for 2018, decreasing to an
ultimate rate of 3.8 percent for 2076 and
later years
HMO Plan 5.2 percent for 2018, decreasing to an
ultimate rate of 3.8 percent for 2076 and
later years
Retirees’ share of benefit-related 100 percent of projected health insurance
costs premiums for retirees

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index.
Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

While an experience study had not been completed for the OPEB Plan, the actuarial assumptions that
determined the total OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan were based on certain results of the most recent
experience study for the FRS Plan.

The following changes have been made since the prior valuation:

® The census data reflects changes in status for the 24-month period since July 1, 2015.
e The annual per capita claims costs have been updated to reflect current age-adjusted premiums.
e The premium rates have been updated to use the rates effective for 2017.

e Health care inflation rates have been updated to reflect recent healthcare trend rate surveys,
blended with the long-term rates from the Getzen model published by the Society of Actuaries.
Additionally, the updated trend rates reflect the information from the Report on the Financial
Outlook for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2023, as adopted
August 3, 2017 by the Self-Insurance Estimated Conference.

e The active mortality rates have been updated to use rates mandated by Chapter 2015-157,
Laws of Florida for pension plans. This law mandates the use of the assumption used in either
of the two most recent valuations of the Florida Retirement System (FRS). The rates are those
outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2016 FRS actuarial valuation report.

e The discount rate as of the measurement date for GASB Statement No. 75 purposes is
3.58 percent. The prior GASB Statement No. 45 valuation used 4.00 percent. The
GASB Statement No. 75 discount rate is based on the 20-year municipal bond rate as of
June 29, 2017.

Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate. The following table presents the University’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability, as well
as what the University’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.58 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (4.58 percent)
than the current rate:
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1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%)

University’s proportionate
share of the total OPEB liability =~ $374,009,000  $300,512,000  $244,398,000

Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates. The following table presents the University’s proportionate share of the
total OPEB liability, as well as what the University’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase

University’s proportionate
share of the total OPEB liability =~ $239,181,000  $300,512,000  $383,830,000

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the University recognized OPEB expense of $19,854,000. At
June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Resources of Resources
Change of assumptions $ - $ 42,480,000
Changes in proportionate share 3,961,000 -
Transactions subsequent to the

measurement date 3,583,000 -
Total $ 7,544,000 $ 42,480,000

Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $3,583,000 resulting
from transactions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be
included as a reduction of the total OPEB liability and included in OPEB expense in the year ended
June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount

2019 $ (5,503,000)
2020 (5,503,000)
2021 (5,503,000)
2022 (5,503,000)
2023 (5,503,000)
Thereafter (11,004,000)
Total $ (38,519,000)

Net Pension Liability. As a participating employer in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), the
University recognizes its proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities of the
FRS cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans. As of June 30, 2018, the University’s
proportionate share of the net pension liabilities totaled $233,142,860. Note 12. includes a complete
discussion of defined benefit pension plans.

Interest Rate Swap. As described previously in the Loans and Notes Payable section above, the
Corporation’s interest rate swap liability was terminated in September 2017.

Other Noncurrent Liabilities. Other noncurrent liabilities primarily consist of the liability for the Federal
Capital Contribution (advance) provided to fund the University’'s Federal Perkins Loan Program. Under
the Perkins Loan program, the University receives Federal capital contributions that must be returned to
the Federal Government if the program has excess cash or the University ceases to participate in the
program. Federal capital contributions held by the University totaled $6,413,545 as of June 30, 2018.

Certificate of Participation Payable and Bonds Payable — Component Units.

UCF Convocation Corporation

During the 2013-14 and 2014-15 fiscal years, the UCF Convocation Corporation issued two refunding
certificates of participation, Series 2014A for $58,645,000 and Series 2014B for $58,930,000 related to
the construction of four residential housing towers, two adjacent parking facilities, and certain surrounding
commercial retail space during the 2004-05 and 2005-06 fiscal years. The refunding certificates will
mature on October 1, 2034, and October 1, 2035, respectively, and bear interest at a fixed rate of
3.61 and 3.80 percent, respectively, per annum.

During the 2015-16 fiscal year, the UCF Convocation Corporation issued a $48,385,000 Refunding
Revenue Bond, Series 2015A and a $34,775,000 Taxable Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2015B, to
a bank, related to the acquisition, construction, and installation of a new convocation center, renovation
of the existing University Arena, and construction of related infrastructure during the 2005-06 fiscal year.
The bonds will mature on October 1, 2035, and bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 2 to 5 percent
per annum.

The outstanding balance of UCF Convocation Corporation certificates and revenue bonds at
June 30, 2018, was $104,395,000 and $76,785,000, respectively, before an unamortized premium of
$976,067.

The University entered into an operating agreement with the UCF Convocation Corporation whereby the
UCF Convocation Corporation will be solely responsible for management and operations of the
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convocation center and related facilities. The University assigned its rights, title, and interest in revenues
generated from use of the facilities to the UCF Convocation Corporation and granted it the right to pledge
revenues to secure repayment of the refunding revenue bonds. The University retained the right for
priority use of the facilities for a period of at least 100 days annually. In exchange, the University agreed
to pay UCF Convocation Corporation $2,200,000 per year for the term of the agreement. The term of
the agreement ends in 2036 and cannot be terminated prior to the time that all related bonds have been
paid in full. Amounts paid to UCF Convocation Corporation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018,
totaled $2,200,000.

The University entered into a support agreement with the UCF Convocation Corporation such that it will
fund certain deficiencies that may arise in the event the corporation is unable to make the minimum
payments on the certificates or bonds. The University is obligated only to the extent it has legally
available revenues to cover the unpaid amounts. In the event of certain deficiencies for debt service
coverage requirements or reserve account shortfalls, the University agrees to defer collecting certain
expenditures to cover any such deficiencies.

In fiscal year 2018, the UCF Convocation Corporation met requirements necessary to release certain
restricted funds held by the trustee. The Corporation’s governing board made the decision to remit a
portion of these funds back to the University. Transfers to the University totaled $704,711 for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.

UCF Stadium Corporation

During the 2015-16 fiscal year, the UCF Stadium Corporation issued Series 2015A tax-exempt refunding
revenue bonds for $33,995,000 with a net premium of $2,332,576, Series 2015B taxable refunding
revenue bonds for $10,250,000, and a Series 2015C non-taxable refunding revenue bond for $3,810,000,
to a bank, related to the construction of a football stadium on the campus at the University. The bonds
include both term and serial bonds and are secured by a pledge from the UCF Athletics Association, Inc.
of gross ticket revenues, rent, away game guarantees, conference distributions, and sponsorship
revenues. The bonds bear fixed interest rates that range from 2.75 percent to 5.15 percent, and maturity
dates that range from March 2029 to March 2036.

The outstanding balance of all UCF Stadium Corporation revenue bonds at June 30, 2018, was
$43,908,000, before an unamortized premium of $2,035,005.

The University entered into a support agreement with the UCF Stadium Corporation such that it will fund
certain deficiencies that may arise in the event either corporation is unable to make the minimum
payments on the bonds. In addition, if the Corporation has deficiencies for debt service coverage or
reserve account shortfalls, the University agrees to transfer funds to cover any such deficiencies. The
University is obligated only to the extent it has legally available revenues to cover the unpaid amounts.

Loans and Notes Payable — Component Units.

UCF Foundation, Inc.

During the 2004-05 fiscal year, the University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc. entered into a note with
a bank for the purchase of land and buildings. The note is secured by the land, buildings, and lease
revenues. In May 2017, the note was refinanced to a 3.34 percent fixed rate. The principal balance at
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the time of the refinance was $7,535,000 with the note still maturing on April 1, 2029. As of
June 30, 2018, the remaining outstanding principal was $7,015,000.

During the 2009-10 fiscal year, the University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc. entered into a note with
a bank for $19,925,000. The note is comprised of a tax-exempt portion with a fixed rate of 4.96 percent
and a taxable portion with a fixed rate of 5.83 percent. The note is secured by buildings and lease
revenue. As of June 30, 2018, the taxable note was fully repaid and the remaining outstanding principal
for the tax-exempt note was $12,440,000.

UCF Athletics Association, Inc.

During the 2014-15 fiscal year, the UCF Athletics Association, Inc. modified a construction line of credit
with a local bank to a line of credit promissory note. The note matures June 2033, and the repayment
schedule assumes the agreement is renewed annually. If the agreement is not renewed, the entire
balance will be due in full at that time. On July 1, 2018, the UCF Athletics Association, Inc. renewed the
agreement until July 2019, which carries interest at 67 percent of LIBOR plus 1.34 percent (2.76 percent
at June 30, 2018). The note is secured by an amount not to exceed 5 percent of the prior year’s collection
of student athletic fees and conference payments from the American Athletic Conference. As of
June 30, 2018, the amount outstanding on the note was $5,654,999.

In June 2018, the UCF Athletics Association, Inc. also renewed an operating line of credit agreement with
a local bank for $5,000,000. The line carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2 percent (4.13 percent at
June 30, 2018). The line is secured by all contract royalties under a multimedia agreement, as well as,
all NCAA grant-in-aid and sports sponsorship distributions. As of June 30, 2018, there was
$620,000 outstanding on the operating line of credit.

Due to University — Component Units.

Three of its component units reported moneys due to the University totaling $6,928,535. The UCF
Athletics Association, Inc. received several loans from the University between 2004 and 2007. In 2009,
those loans were consolidated into one loan. In July 2015, the Board of Trustees approved an
amendment to the previous payment schedule. A payment of $500,000 was made during the
2017-18 fiscal year with future years’ payments ranging from $500,000 to $1,200,000. The loan matures
in fiscal year 2025 and bears interest at a variable rate equal to the preceding fiscal year's average
SPIA rate of return. As of June 30, 2018, the amount outstanding, including interest, totaled $6,210,502.

12.Retirement Plans — Defined Benefit Pension Plans

General Information about the Florida Retirement System (FRS).

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan for
participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement Option
Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined contribution
plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This integrated
defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, also
provides for nonintegrated, optional retirement programs in lieu of the FRS to certain members of the
Senior Management Service Class employed by the State and faculty and specified employees in the
State university system. Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy
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(HIS) Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan to assist retired members
of any State-administered retirement system in paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the University are eligible to enroll as members of the
State-administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and
122, Florida Statutes; Chapter 112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and
FRS Rules, Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are
defined and described in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action from the
Florida Legislature. The FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida Department of
Management Services, Division of Retirement, and consists of two cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plans and other nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive annual financial report of the
FRS, which includes its financial statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and
other relevant information, is available from the Florida Department of Management Services Web site
(www.dms.myflorida.com).

The University’'s FRS and HIS pension expense totaled $41,271,242 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018.

FRS Pension Plan

Plan Description. The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, with a DROP for eligible employees. The general classes of membership are as follows:

e Regular Class — Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership in the other classes.
e Senior Management Service Class (SMSC) — Members in senior management level positions.

e Special Risk Class — Members who are employed as law enforcement officers and meet the
criteria to qualify for this class.

Employees enrolled in the Plan prior to July 1, 2011, vest at 6 years of creditable service and employees
enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at 8 years of creditable service. All vested members,
enrolled prior to July 1, 2011, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62 or at any age after
30 years of creditable service, except for members classified as special risk who are eligible for normal
retirement benefits at age 55 or at any age after 25 years of creditable service. All members enrolled in
the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, once vested, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 65 or any
time after 33 years of creditable service, except for members classified as special risk who are eligible
for normal retirement benefits at age 60 or at any age after 30 years of creditable service. Employees
enrolled in the Plan may include up to 4 years of credit for military service toward creditable service. The
Plan also includes an early retirement provision; however, there is a benefit reduction for each year a
member retires before his or her normal retirement date. The Plan provides retirement, disability, death
benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to eligible participants.

The DROP, subject to provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for
normal retirement under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while continuing
employment with an FRS-participating employer. An employee may participate in DROP for a period not
to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. During the period of DROP participation, deferred
monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. The net pension liability does not

Report No. 2019-168
March 2019 Page 47

191



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

include amounts for DROP participants, as these members are considered retired and are not accruing
additional pension benefits.

Benefits Provided. Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age, and/or years of service,
average final compensation, and credit service. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a
percentage of the average final compensation. For members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, the
average final compensation is the average of the 5 highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members initially
enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the average of the 8 highest fiscal
years’ earnings. The total percentage value of the benefit received is determined by calculating the total
value of all service, which is based on retirement plan and/or the class to which the member belonged
when the service credit was earned. Members are eligible for in-line-of-duty or regular disability and
survivors’ benefits. The following table shows the percentage value for each year of service credit
earned:

Class, Initial Enroliment, and Retirement Age/Years of Service % Value

Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 1.68

Regular Class members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68
Senior Management Service Class 2.00
Special Risk Class 3.00

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member was initially enrolled in the Plan before
July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment
is 3 percent per year. If the member was initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on
or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living
adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit
by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by 3 percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after
July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

Contributions. The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participating employers and
employees. Contribution rates during the 2017-18 fiscal year were:
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Percent of Gross Salary

Class Employee Employer(1)
FRS, Regular 3.00 7.92
FRS, Senior Management Service 3.00 22.71
FRS, Special Risk 3.00 23.27
Deferred Retirement Option Program (applicable to

0.00 13.26

members from all of the above classes)

FRS, Reemployed Retiree (2) (2)

(1) Employer rates include 1.66 percent for the postemployment health insurance subsidy.
Also, employer rates, other than for DROP participants, include 0.06 percent for
administrative costs of the Investment Plan.

(2) Contribution rates are dependent upon retirement class in which reemployed.

The University’s contributions to the Plan totaled $18,255,686 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2018, the University reported a liability of $176,504,316 for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017. The University’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability was based on the University’s 2016-17 fiscal year contributions relative to the total 2016-17 fiscal
year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2017, the University’s proportionate share
was 0.596715076 percent, which was an increase of 0.03684922 from its proportionate share measured
as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the University recognized pension expense of $35,487,896. In
addition, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience $ 16,198,849 $ 977,743
Change of assumptions 59,317,911 -
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on FRS Plan investments - 4,374,218

Changes in proportion and differences between
University contributions and proportionate share

of contributions 19,109,928 -
University FRS contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 18,255,686 -
Total $ 112,882,374 $ 5,351,961

The deferred outflows of resources totaling $18,255,686, resulting from University contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount

2019 $ 15,248,290
2020 30,432,102
2021 20,739,594
2022 5,247,691
2023 12,845,328
Thereafter 4,761,722
Total $ 89,274,727

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return  7.10 percent, net of pension plan investment
expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns,
but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s
description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below.
Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes an
adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation
Cash 1% 3.0% 3.0% 1.8%
Fixed Income 18% 4.5% 4.4% 4.2%
Global Equity 53% 7.8% 6.6% 17.0%
Real Estate (Property) 10% 6.6% 5.9% 12.8%
Private Equity 6% 11.5% 7.8% 30.0%
Strategic Investments 12% 6.1% 5.6% 9.7%
Total 100%
Assumed inflation - Mean 2.6% 1.9%

(1) As outlined in the Plan’s investment policy.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The
Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension
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liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return. The discount rate used in the 2017 valuation
was updated from 7.60 percent to 7.10 percent.

Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate. The following presents the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the University’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(6.10 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)
University’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability $319,462,151 $176,504,316 $57,816,559

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

HIS Pension Plan

Plan Description. The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The benefit is a monthly payment to
assist retirees of State-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is
administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

Benefits Provided. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received
a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement with
a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month, pursuant to
Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS Plan benefit, a retiree under a
State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which can
include Medicare.

Contributions. The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set
by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active
FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the contribution rate was 1.66 percent of payroll
pursuant to Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The University contributed 100 percent of its statutorily
required contributions for the current and preceding 3 years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a
separate trust fund from which HIS payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and
are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event the legislative appropriation or available funds
fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or canceled.

The University’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $2,887,590 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2018, the University reported a liability of $56,638,544 for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The current portion of the net pension liability is the
University’s proportionate share of benefit payments expected to be paid within 1 year, net of the
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University’s proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position available to pay that amount. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, and update
procedures were used to determine liabilities as of July 1, 2017. The University’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability was based on the University’s 2016-17 fiscal year contributions relative to the
total 2016-17 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2017, the University’s
proportionate share was 0.529705387 percent, which was an increase of .030014652 from its
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the University recognized pension expense of $5,783,346. In
addition, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Description

Differences between expected
and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on HIS Plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between
University HIS contributions and proportionate
share of HIS contributions
University HIS contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
$ -5 117,930
7,961,432 4,897,595
31,410 -
7,222,794 -
2,887,590 -
$ 18,103,226 $ 5,015,525

The deferred outflows of resources totaling $2,887,590, resulting from University contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereatter

Total

Amount

$ 2,403,494
2,397,550
2,394,697
2,015,619
1,171,322

(182,571)
$ 10,200,111

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability at July 1, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
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Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Municipal bond rate 3.58 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

While an experience study had not been completed for the HIS Plan, the actuarial assumptions that
determined the total pension liability for the HIS Plan were based on certain results of the most recent
experience study for the FRS Plan.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.58 percent. In general,
the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to
discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion
date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is
considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate
selected by the plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was
adopted as the applicable municipal bond index. The discount rate used in the 2017 valuation was
updated from 2.85 percent to 3.58 percent.

Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate. The following presents the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 3.58 percent, as well as what the University’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(2.58 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (4.58 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%)
University’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability $64,632,079 $56,638,544 $49,980,371

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

13.Retirement Plans — Defined Contribution Pension Plans

FRS Investment Plan. The SBA administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the
FRS Investment Plan (Investment Plan). The Investment Plan is reported in the SBA’s annual financial
statements and in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in the
Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined benefit plan. University employees already participating in
the State University System Optional Retirement Program or DROP are not eligible to participate in the
Investment Plan. Employer and employee contributions are defined by law, but the ultimate benefit
depends in part on the performance of investment funds. Service retirement benefits are based upon
the value of the member’s account upon retirement. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements,
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are established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with the
same employer and employee contributions, that are based on salary and membership class
(Regular Class, Senior Management Service Class, etc.), as the FRS defined benefit plan. Contributions
are directed to individual member accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and
account balances among various approved investment choices. Costs of administering the Investment
Plan, including the FRS Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of
0.06 percent of payroll and by forfeited benefits of Investment Plan members. Allocations to the
Investment Plan member accounts during the 2017-18 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of
Gross
Class Compensation
FRS, Regular 6.30
FRS, Senior Management Service 7.67
FRS, Special Risk Regular 14.00

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and are vested
after 1 year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings regardless of membership
class. If an accumulated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under the FRS Pension
Plan is transferred to the FRS Investment Plan, the member must have the years of service required for
FRS Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be vested
for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested employer contributions are placed in a
suspense account for up to 5 years. If the employee returns to FRS-covered employment within the
5-year period, the employee will regain control over their account. If the employee does not return within
the 5-year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated account balance. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, the information for the amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however,
management believes that these amounts, if any, would be immaterial to the University.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may roll over vested funds to another
qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-sum distribution,
leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these options. Disability coverage
is provided in which the member may either transfer the account balance to the FRS Pension Plan when
approved for disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime monthly benefits under the FRS Pension
Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that account balance for retirement income.

The University’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $4,145,785 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018.

State University System Optional Retirement Program. Section 121.35, Florida Statutes, provides
for an Optional Retirement Program (Program) for eligible university instructors and administrators. The
Program is designed to aid State universities in recruiting employees by offering more portability to
employees not expected to remain in the FRS for 8 or more years.

The Program is a defined contribution plan, which provides full and immediate vesting of all contributions
submitted to the participating companies on behalf of the participant. Employees in eligible positions can
make an irrevocable election to participate in the Program, rather than the FRS, and purchase retirement
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and death benefits through contracts provided by certain insurance carriers. The employing university
contributes 5.14 percent of the participant’s salary to the participant’'s account, 3.3 percent to cover the
unfunded actuarial liability of the FRS pension plan, and 0.01 percent to cover administrative costs, for a
total of 8.45 percent, and employees contribute 3 percent of the employee’s salary. Additionally, the
employee may contribute, by payroll deduction, an amount not to exceed the percentage contributed by
the University to the participant’s annuity account. The contributions are invested in the company or
companies selected by the participant to create a fund for the purchase of annuities at retirement.

The University’s contributions to the Program totaled $20,369,919, and employee contributions totaled
$11,861,163 for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

14.Construction Commitments
The University’s major construction commitments at June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Total Completed Balance
Project Description Commitment to Date Committed

UCF Downtown Academic Building $ 57,606,901 $ 14,083,718 $ 43,523,183

John C. Hitt Library Renovations 39,135,178 21,633,751 17,501,427
Trevor Colbourn Hall 35,093,018 30,008,522 5,084,496
CREOL Expansion Phase Il 6,379,029 1,166,986 5,212,043
Student Union Expansion 5,356,088 3,232,891 2,123,197
Roth Athletic Center 2,507,815 377,140 2,130,675
Utilities Relocation Project 1,726,836 706,816 1,020,020
UCF Downtown Central

Energy Plant 1,273,343 236,072 1,037,271
Subtotal 149,078,208 71,445,896 77,632,312
Other Projects (1) 24,794,363 18,614,547 6,179,816
Total $ 173,872,571 $ 90,060,443 $ 83,812,128

(1) Individual projects with a current balance committed of less than $1 million at June 30, 2018.

15.Operating Lease Commitments

The University leased buildings under operating leases, which expire in fiscal year 2039-40. These
leased assets and the related commitments are not reported on the University’s statement of net position.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expenses when paid or incurred. Outstanding commitments
resulting from these lease agreements are contingent upon future appropriations. Future minimum lease
commitments for these noncancelable operating leases are as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount

2019 $ 11,456,189
2020 12,422,270
2021 7,053,820
2022 6,773,556
2023 6,017,826
2024-2028 11,107,703
2029-2033 4,560,493
2034-2038 4,046,079
2039-2040 876,673

Total Minimum Payments Required $ 64,314,609

The University of Central Florida Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) receives rents and reimbursement for
certain operating expenses from the University for various buildings owned by the Foundation and
occupied by the University. The Foundation and University are also parties to a long-term 99-year ground
lease for use of the land at Lake Nona for the Health Sciences Campus. Rents and reimbursements paid
by the University for the year ended June 30, 2018, were $9,445,452.

The University has also entered into rental agreements with the UCF Convocation Corporation for use of
parking garages and various retail spaces surrounding the arena. Rents paid to the UCF Convocation
Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2018, totaled $2,393,192.

The University has entered into a 40-year lease for the use of a research and development center, with
base rent of $1 per year, and is responsible for all operating and maintenance charges for the center.
The University has entered into a 5-year management services agreement with another entity to manage
and operate the center. The entity will be responsible for payment of all operating and maintenance costs
with some allowable costs reimbursed by the University.

16.State Self-Insurance Programs

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Pursuant to
Section 1001.72(2), Florida Statutes, the University participates in State self-insurance programs
providing insurance for property and casualty, workers’ compensation, general liability, fleet automotive
liability, Federal Civil Rights, and employment discrimination liability. During the 2017-18 fiscal year, for
property losses, the State retained the first $2 million per occurrence for all perils except named
windstorm and flood. The State retained the first $2 million per occurrence with an annual aggregate
retention of $40 million for named windstorm and flood losses. After the annual aggregate retention,
losses in excess of $2 million per occurrence were commercially insured up to $92.5 million for named
windstorm and flood through February 14, 2018, and decreased to $78 million starting February 15, 2018.
For perils other than named windstorm and flood, losses in excess of $2 million per occurrence were
commercially insured up to $225 million; and losses exceeding those amounts were retained by the State.
No excess insurance coverage is provided for workers’ compensation, general and automotive liability,
Federal Civil Rights and employment action coverage; all losses in these categories are completely
self-insured by the State through the State Risk Management Trust Fund established pursuant to
Chapter 284, Florida Statutes. Payments on tort claims are limited to $200,000 per person, and
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$300,000 per occurrence as set by Section 768.28(5), Florida Statutes. Calculation of premiums
considers the cash needs of the program and the amount of risk exposure for each participant.
Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the past 3 fiscal years.

Pursuant to Section 110.123, Florida Statutes, University employees may obtain healthcare services
through participation in the State group health insurance plan or through membership in a health
maintenance organization plan under contract with the State. The State’s risk financing activities
associated with State group health insurance, such as risk of loss related to medical and prescription
drug claims, are administered through the State Employees Group Health Insurance Trust Fund. ltis the
practice of the State not to purchase commercial coverage for the risk of loss covered by this Fund.
Additional information on the State’s group health insurance plan, including the actuarial report, is
available from the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of State Group Insurance.

17.University Self-Insured Program

The University of Central Florida, College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program (Program) was
established pursuant to Section 1004.24, Florida Statutes, on September 25, 2008. The Program’s
purpose is to provide comprehensive general liability and professional liability (malpractice) coverage for
the University of Central Florida Board of Trustees and students for claims and actions arising from the
clinical activities of the College of Medicine, College of Nursing, UCF Health Services, College of Health
and Public Affairs, and the Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization, Inc., faculty, staff and resident
physicians. The Program provides legislative claims bill protection. The Program is distinct from and
entirely independent of the self-insurance programs administered by the State described in Note 16.

The University is protected for losses that are subject to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, to the extent
of the waiver of sovereign immunity as described in Section 768.28(5), Florida Statutes. The Program
also provides $1,000,000 per legislative claims bills inclusive of payments made pursuant to
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes; $250,000 per occurrence of protection for the participants that are not
subject to the provisions of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes; $250,000 per claim protection for
participants who engage in approved community service and act as Good Samaritans; and student
protections of $200,000 for claim arising from an occurrence for any one person, $300,000 for all claims
arising from an occurrence and professional liability required by a hospital or other healthcare facility for
educational purposes not to exceed a per occurrence limit of $1,000,000.

The Self-Insurance Program’s estimated liability for unpaid claims at fiscal year-end is the result of
management and actuarial analysis and includes an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported. Changes in the balances of claims liability for the Self-Insurance Program during the
2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years are presented in the following table:

Current Claims

Claims Liability and Changesin Claim Claim Liabilities
Fiscal Year Beginning of Year Estimates Payments End of Year
June 30, 2017 $ 141,222  $ 92,630 $ (274) $ 233,578
June 30, 2018 233,578 368,940 (1,023) 601,495
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18.Litigation

The University is involved in several pending and threatened legal actions. The range of potential loss
from all such claims and actions, as estimated by the University’s legal counsel and management, should
not materially affect the University’s financial position.

19.Functional Distribution of Operating Expenses

The functional classification of an operating expense (instruction, research, etc.) is assigned to a
department based on the nature of the activity, which represents the material portion of the activity
attributable to the department. For example, activities of an academic department for which the primary
departmental function is instruction may include some activities other than direct instruction such as
research and public service. However, when the primary mission of the department consists of
instructional program elements, all expenses of the department are reported under the instruction
classification. The operating expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position are presented by natural classifications. The following are those same expenses presented in
functional classifications as recommended by NACUBO:

Functional Classification Amount

Instruction $ 368,234,137
Research 143,653,460
Public Senvices 13,361,770
Academic Support 80,961,892
Student Senvices 55,325,718
Institutional Support 96,144,613
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 60,749,798
Scholarships, Fellowships, and Waivers 119,990,341
Depreciation 66,259,952
Auxiliary Enterprises 94,845,046
Loan Operations 476,387
Total Operating Expenses $1,100,003,114

20.Segment Information

A segment is defined as an identifiable activity (or grouping of activities) that has one or more bonds or
other debt instruments outstanding with a revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. In addition,
the activity’s related revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources are required to be accounted for separately. The following financial
information for the University’s Housing, Parking, and Health Services facilities represents identifiable
activities for which one or more bonds are outstanding:
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Condensed Statement of Net Position

Housing Parking Health Services
Capital Capital Capital
Improvement Improvement Improvement
Debt Debt Debt
Assets
Current Assets $ 13,907,999 $ 11,257,929 $ 10,194,101
Capital Assets, Net 90,501,932 59,250,294 10,321,067
Other Noncurrent Assets 11,712,667 17,158,837 6,522,000
Total Assets 116,122,598 87,667,060 27,037,168
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 9,395,919 3,812,868 1,240,738
Noncurrent Liabilities 84,185,888 24,555,374 2,685,000
Total Liabilities 93,581,807 28,368,242 3,925,738
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,282,036 31,636,904 7,171,067
Restricted - Expendable 11,590,403 17,107,972 6,448,077
Unrestricted 9,668,352 10,553,942 9,492,286
Total Net Position $ 22,540,791 $ 59,298,818 $ 23,111,430
Report No. 2019-168
March 2019 Page 59

203



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Nonoperating Revenue
Interest Expense
Other Nonoperating Expense

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains
and Losses

Increase in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Housing Parking Health Services
Capital Capital Capital
Improvement Improvement Improvement
Debt Debt Debt
$ 29,971,788 $ 22,116,646 $ 22,215,310

(4,277,614) (2,871,423) (580,955)
(16,417,131) (11,931,376) (17,473,206)
9,277,043 7,313,847 4,161,149

526,316 669,684 231,119
(3,957,120) (1,214,085) (197,916)
(176,917) (49,473) -
(3,607,721) (593,874) 33,203
(6,516,032) (2,926,786) (3,065,664)
5,669,322 6,719,973 4,194,352
23,387,501 55,505,631 21,982,742

$ 22,540,791 $ 59,298,818 $ 23,111,430

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Net Cash Provided (Used) by:
Operating Activities
Noncapital Financing Activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

21.Blended Component Units

The University has two blended component units as discussed in Note 1.

Housing Parking Health Services
Capital Capital Capital
Improvement Improvement Improvement
Debt Debt Debt
$ 13,296,893 $ 9,567,175 $ 3,820,687
(2,943,272) (1,643,924) (2,415,397)
(13,131,665) (6,241,387) (1,085,516)
3,322,094 (783,988) 111,933
544,050 897,876 431,707
1,374,835 1,285,429 783,081

$ 1,918,885 $ 2,183,305 §$ 1,214,788

The following financial

information is presented net of eliminations for the University’s blended component units:
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Assets:
Other Current Assets
Capital Assets, Net
Due From University / Blended CU
Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities:

Other Current Liabilities

Due to University / Blended CU
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted - Expendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Blended Component Units

University of
Central Florida

College of Total
Medicine Blended Total
UCF Finance Selfinsurance Component Primary
Corporation Program Units University Eliminations Government
$ 3,259,264 $ 5,681,660 $ 8,940,924 $ 619,653,227 $ - $ 628,594,151
- - - 1,147,333,737 - 1,147,333,737
48,064,711 - 48,064,711 - (48,064,711) -
- - - 106,460,582 106,460,582
51,323,975 5,681,660 57,005,635 1,873,447,546 (48,064,711)  1,882,388,470
12,936,932 - 12,936,932 138,529,600 - 151,466,532
3,258,308 601,495 3,859,803 119,299,240 - 123,159,043
- - - 48,064,711 (48,064,711) -
60,861,000 - 60,861,000 699,201,410 - 760,062,410
64,119,308 601,495 64,720,803 866,565,361 (48,064,711) 883,221,453
- - - 52,847,486 - 52,847,486
- - - 982,635,149 - 982,635,149
141,599 5,080,165 5,221,764 141,269,108 - 146,490,872
- - - (31,339,958) - (31,339,958)
$ 141,599 $ 5,080,165 $ 5,221,764  $1,092,564,299 $ - $1,097,786,063
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Nonoperating Revenue
Interest Expense
Other Nonoperating Expense

Net Nonoperating Revenues
Other Revenues
Increase in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Adjustment to Beginning Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Net Position, End of Year

Net Cash Provided (Used) by:
Operating Activities
Noncapital Financing Activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

University of
Central Florida

College of Total
Medicine Blended Total
UCF Finance Self-Insurance Component Primary
Corporation Program Units University Eliminations Government
$ -3 1,432,659 $ 1,432,659 $ 550,334,264 $ (1,432,659) $ 550,334,264
- - - (66,259,952) - (66,259,952)
(742,920) (826,996) (1,569,916)  (1,032,428,638) 255,392 (1,033,743,162)
(742,920) 605,663 (137,257) (548,354,326) (1,177,267) (549,668,850)
3,672,465 109,847 3,782,312 609,329,653 (3,568,345) 609,543,620
(2,129,545) - (2,129,545) (5,404,485) - (7,534,030)
(800,000) - (800,000) (36,990,599) 4,745,612 (33,044,987)
742,920 109,847 852,767 566,934,569 1,177,267 568,964,603
- - - 18,988,261 - 18,988,261
- 715,510 715,510 37,568,504 - 38,284,014
141,599 4,364,655 4,506,254 1,275,448,795 - 1,279,955,049
- - - (220,453,000) - (220,453,000)
141,599 4,364,655 4,506,254 1,054,995,795 - 1,059,502,049
$ 141,599 § 5,080,165 $ 5,221,764 $1,092,564,299 $ - $1,097,786,063

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Blended Component Units

University of
Central Florida
College of Total
Medicine Blended Total
UCF Finance  Selfinsurance Component Primary
Corporation Program Units University Eliminations Government

$ (528,222) $ 1,053,557 $ 525,335 $ (440,338,410) $ (1,178,896) $ (440,991,971)
- - - 550,967,406 3,440,073 554,407,479
(394,577) - (394,577) (108,224,520) (2,261,177) (110,880,274)
44,237 (827,544) (783,307) 5,009,534 - 4,226,227
(878,562) 226,013 (652,549) 7,414,010 - 6,761,461
4,137,826 1,567,691 5,705,517 13,317,018 - 19,022,535
$ 3,259,264 $ 1,793,704 § 5,052,968 § 20,731,028 § - $§ 25783,996

22.Discretely Presented Component Units

The University has six discretely presented component units as discussed in Note 1. These component
units comprise 100 percent of the transactions and account balances of the aggregate discretely
presented component units’ columns of the financial statements. The following financial information is
from the most recently available audited financial statements for the component units:
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Assets:
Current Assets
Capital Assets, Net
Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted Nonexpendable
Restricted Expendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Direct-Support Organizations Other
University of University of Central Florida
Central Central Florida Clinical
Florida Research UCF Athletics UCF UCF Total Practice
Foundation, Foundation, Association, Convocation Stadium Direct-Support  Organization,
Inc. Inc. Inc. Corporation Corporation Organizations Inc. Total
$ 28453930 $ 15,006,687 $ 4,224510 $ 18,923,437 § 3,063,841 $ 69,672,405 $ 7,382,336 $ 77,054,741
75,481,744 - 22,650,504 78,580,471 - 176,712,719 135,272 176,847,991
234,177,642 399,220 - 2,989,201 - 237,566,063 319,593 237,885,656
338,113,316 15,405,907 26,875,014 100,493,109 3,063,841 483,951,187 7,837,201 491,788,388
- - - 4,456,977 676,182 5,133,159 - 5,133,159
2,916,641 9,107,491 7,363,025 12,445,462 4,108,921 35,941,540 380,718 36,322,258
18,019,108 - 11,867,055 174,706,067 44,157,005 248,749,235 - 248,749,235
20,935,749 9,107,491 19,230,080 187,151,529 48,265,926 284,690,775 380,718 285,071,493
56,026,744 - 16,995,505 (99,118,619) (45,266,823) (71,363,193) 135,272 (71,227,921)
136,083,134 - - - - 136,083,134 - 136,083,134
104,621,697 914,274 693,762 13,459,836 710 119,690,279 - 119,690,279
20,445,992 5,384,142 (10,044,333) 3,457,340 740,210 19,983,351 7,321,211 27,304,562

$ 317,177,567

$ 6,298,416 § 7,644,934 $ (82,201,443) § (44,525,903) $ 204,393,571 $ 7,456,483

$ 211,850,054
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Direct-Support Organizations Other
University of University of Central Florida
Central Central Florida Clinical
Florida Research UCF Athletics UCF UCF Total Practice
Foundation, Foundation, Association, Convocation Stadium Direct-Support  Organization,
Inc. Inc. Inc. Corporation Corporation Organizations Inc. Total

Operating Revenues $ 56,987,606 $ 11,770,482 $ 59,157,030 $ 32,641,933 $ 3,644,882 $ 164,201,933 § 6,091,038 $ 170,292,971
Depreciation Expense (1,733,080) - (924,514) (2,980,672) - (5,638,266) (36,549) (5,674,815)
Operating Expenses (49,586,383) (11,161,075) (54,992,976) (16,636,510) (438,710) (132,815,654) (2,158,520) (134,974,174)
Operating Income 5,668,143 609,407 3,239,540 13,024,751 3,206,172 25,748,013 3,895,969 29,643,982
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Nonoperating Revenues 12,575,647 370,625 1,298,964 137,635 58,170 14,441,041 - 14,441,041

Interest Expense - - (248,788) (7,306,551) (1,813,440) (9,368,779) - (9,368,779)

Other Nonoperating Expenses (33,995) - - (935,703) (23,676) (993,374) (1,904,973) (2,898,347)

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 12,541,652 370,625 1,050,176 (8,104,619) (1,778,946) 4,078,888 (1,904,973) 2,173,915
Other Revenues 5,693,092 - - - - 5,693,092 - 5,693,092
Increase in Net Position 23,902,887 980,032 4,289,716 4,920,132 1,427,226 35,519,993 1,990,996 37,510,989
Net Position, Beginning of Year 293,274,680 5,318,384 3,355,218 (91,426,081) (46,601,554) 163,920,647 5,465,487 169,386,134
Adjustment to Beginning Net Position - - - 4,304,506 648,425 4,952,931 - 4,952,931
Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated 293,274,680 5,318,384 3,355,218 (87,121,575) (45,953,129) 168,873,578 5,465,487 174,339,065
Net Position, End of Year $ 317,177,567 $ 6,298,416 § 7,644,934 $ (82,201,443) $ (44,525,903) $ 204,393,571 $ 7,456,483 $ 211,850,054

Report No. 2019-168
Page 64 March 2019

208



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

The UCF Convocation Corporation and the UCF Stadium Corporation have a deficit net position of
$82,201,443 and $44,525,903, respectively, as of June 30, 2018. These deficits are attributed to the
transfer of buildings and building improvements to the University as a result of the August 2015 and
December 2015 debt refundings which terminated the ground leases between the UCF Convocation
Corporation and the University, and the UCF Stadium Corporation and the University. The Corporations’
debts related to the refundings were previously included as a component of the Net Investment in Capital
Assets net position but are now included as a component of unrestricted net position on their stand-alone
financial statements. The University has reclassified the amounts to Net Investment in Capital Assets in
the Statement of Net Position. As the UCF Convocation Corporation and the UCF Stadium Corporation
continue to reduce their outstanding long-term debt obligations, the deficit net position will decrease.

23.Subsequent Events

In July 2018, the UCF Convocation Corporation issued Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 of
$104,636,000 to a bank. The Series 2018 bonds were issued at par. This issuance includes term bonds
with maturity dates extending through October 2035 and a fixed interest rate of 3.52 percent. Proceeds
of $104,636,000 from the Refunding Revenue Bonds plus an additional $1,087,838 from the
UCF Convocation Corporation were used to purchase $105,482,838 of United States Treasury State and
Local Government Series Securities. These securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the outstanding 2014A and 2014B certificates,
which defeased the certificates. The UCF Convocation Corporation extinguished the debt on
July 2, 2018.

The defeasance of the 2014A and 2014B certificates terminated the Housing ground lease agreement
between the University and the UCF Convocation Corporation, resulting in the UCF Convocation
Corporation transferring $78,269,300 in net carrying value of all buildings and improvements to the
University. Pursuant to the Operating Agreement between the University and the UCF Convocation
Corporation, the UCF Convocation Corporation will continue to operate and maintain the facilities, and
the University will relinquish its right to the future revenues earned by the facilities to the UCF Convocation
Corporation. The revenues generated by and through such operation will secure repayment of the Series
2018 refunding revenue bonds.

On August 27, 2018, the UCF Foundation, Inc. closed on a 175,000 square foot building located in Lake
Nona Medical City to be used by the University as a cancer research and treatment facility. The purchase
price of the Sanford Burnham building and land is $50,000,000, funded by a 30-year, interest free,
mortgage.
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OTHER REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share
of the Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability

2017

University's proportion of the total other

postemployment benefits liability 2.78%
University's proportionate share of the total other

postemployment benefits liability $ 300,512,000
University's covered-employee payroll $ 396,397,337
University's proportionate share of the total other

postemployment benefits liability as a

percentage of its covered-employee payroll 75.81%

Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability —
Florida Retirement System Pension Plan

2017 (1) 2016 (1) 2015 (1) 2014 (1) 2013 (1)
University’s proportion of the FRS
net pension liability 0.596715076% 0.559865856% 0.538161499% 0.48430390% 0.360374086%
University’s proportionate share of
the FRS net pension liability $ 176,504,316 $ 141,366,568 $ 69,510,775 $ 29,549,660 $ 62,036,419

University’s covered payroll (2) $ 396,397,337 $ 364,535,289 $ 333,695,268 $ 305,107,256 $ 289,894,138

University’s proportionate share of
the FRS net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll 44.53% 38.78% 20.83% 9.69% 21.40%

FRS Plan fiduciary net position as
a percentage of the FRS total
pension liability 83.89% 84.88% 92.00% 96.09% 88.54%

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

(2) Covered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, State university system optional retirement
program members, and members in DROP because total employer contributions are determined on a uniform basis (blended
rate) as required by Part Il of Chapter 121, Florida Statutes.

Schedule of University Contributions —
Florida Retirement System Pension Plan

2018 (1) 2017 (1) 2016 (1) 2015 (1) 2014 (1)

Contractually required FRS

contribution $ 18,255,686 $ 15,533,963 $ 13,653,222 $ 13,120,834 $ 10,608,311
FRS contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (18,255,686) _ (15,533,963) _ (13,653,222) _ (13,120,834) _ (10,608,311)

FRS contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 - 3 -3 -3 -
University’s covered payroll (2) $ 418,056,891 $ 396,397,337 $364,535,289 $333,695,268 $305,107,256
FRS contributions as a percentage

of covered payroll 4.37% 3.92% 3.75% 3.93% 3.48%

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

(2) Covered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, State university system optional
retirement program members, and members in DROP because total employer contributions are determined on a uniform
basis (blended rate) as required by Part Il of Chapter 121, Florida Statutes.

Report No. 2019-168
Page 66 March 2019

210



Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting - New Business

Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability —
Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan

2017 (1) 2016 (1) 2015 (1) 2014 (1) 2013 (1)
University’s proportion of the HIS net
pension liability 0.529705387% 0.499690735% 0.469662225% 0.430757459% 0.415357381%
University’s proportionate share of
the HIS net pension liability $ 56,638,544 $ 58,236,885 $ 47,898,159 $ 40,276,874 $ 36,162,321
University’s covered payroll (2) $ 166,665,368 $ 153,090,572 $ 140,702,712 $ 127,489,508 $ 122,964,996

University’s proportionate share of
the HIS net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll 33.98% 38.04% 34.04% 31.59% 29.41%

HIS Plan fiduciary net position as
a percentage of the HIS total
pension liability 1.64% 0.97% 0.50% 0.99% 1.78%

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.
(2) Covered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, and members in DROP.

Schedule of University Contributions —
Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan

2018 (1) 2017 (1) 2016 (1) 2015 (1) 2014 (1)

Contractually required HIS

contribution $ 2,887,590 $ 2,803,354 $ 2,561,234 $ 1,795341 $ 1,475,630
HIS contributions in relation to the

contractually required HIS

contribution (2,887,590) (2,803,354) (2,561,234) (1,795,341) (1,475,630)
HIS contribution deficiency (excess) $ -9 -3 -3 -3 -
University’s covered payroll (2) $ 167,400,707 $ 166,665,368 $ 153,090,572 $ 140,702,712 $ 127,489,508
HIS contributions as a percentage

of covered payroll 1.72% 1.68% 1.67% 1.28% 1.16%

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.
(2) Covered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, and members in DROP.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1. Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Total Other Postemployment
Benefits Liability

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to
pay related benefits. The University’s June 30, 2018, proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
decreased from the prior fiscal year as a result of changes to benefits and assumptions as discussed
below:

Changes in Assumptions. In 2018, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted from
adjustments to active mortality rates, updates to HMO and PPO healthcare claims costs, changes in
retiree contributions, change in trend rates, and a change in the discount rate of return. (Refer to
Note 11. to the financial statements for further detail.)

2. Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Contributions —
Florida Retirement System Pension Plan

Changes of Assumptions. The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.60 percent to
7.10 percent, and the active member mortality assumption was updated.

3. Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Contributions —
Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan

Changes of Assumptions. The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability increased from
2.85 percent to 3.58 percent.
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

Claude Denson Pepper Building, Suite G74
Sherrill F. Norman, CPA 111 West Madison Street
Auditor General Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Fax: (850) 488-6975

The President of the Senate, the Speaker of the
House of Representatives, and the
Legislative Auditing Committee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the University of
Central Florida, a component unit of the State of Florida, and its aggregate discretely presented
component units as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 20, 2019, included under the heading INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
blended and aggregate discretely presented component units, as described in our report on the
University’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately
by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the University’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
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a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying SCHEDULE OF FINDING AND RESPONSE as Finding No. 2018-001 that we consider
to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying SCHEDULE OF
FINDING AND RESPONSE as Finding No. 2018-001.

Management’s Response to Finding

Management’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
SCHEDULE OF FINDING AND RESPONSE. Management’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

VR0

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA
Tallahassee, Florida
March 20, 2019
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SCHEDULE OF FINDING AND RESPONSE

NONCOMPLIANCE AND MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Finding Number
Opinion Unit

Financial Statements
Account Titles

Adjustment Amounts
Prior Year Finding

Finding

Management’s Response

FINANCIAL REPORTING
2018-001

University of Central Florida

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

In our operational audit report No. 2019-095, dated January 2019, we disclosed that
the University used $29.1 million in Education and General appropriation
carryforward funds to construct the Trevor Colbourn Hall after the Legislature
directed that non-appropriated sources be used for the construction. In addition,
the University misreported the funding source for the construction of the Trevor
Colbourn Hall in the capital outlay budget for each of the 2015-16 through
2018-19 fiscal years, obscuring government transparency of the budget process
and misinforming the public of how the construction was being funded. As such,
University controls were ineffective to prevent, or timely detect and correct, the
unallowable use of the legislatively appropriated carryforward funds for construction
activities.

As a result of our audit procedures, in September 2018 the University posted journal
entries to replenish the E&G funds totaling $38 million that had been used for the
Trevor Colbourn Hall Project and $46.5 million that had been accumulated for
11 other construction projects. While these journal entries were necessary to
properly record this information in the University accounting records and report it on
the financial statements, our procedures do not substitute for University
management’s responsibility for proper financial reporting.

University management concurred with the finding. Management’s response, in its
entirety, is included in our operational audit report No. 2019-095.
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